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March 16, 2012

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Rockport, Texas

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of
Rockport, Texas for the year ended September 30, 2011, is submitied.
This report was prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles on a basis consistent with the prior year, The
preparation of the annual financial report and all financial information in
the reporl is the responsibility of the City. The scope of the independent
audifor’s examination is lo render an opinion on the financial information
in the Annual Financial Report, Complete details concerning the City’s
fiscal year aclivities and related costs are presented in the enclosed
natratives and financial statements,

This Letter of Transmittal and the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis are management’s opportunity to commumicate aspects of the
overall financial condition, details of which are frequently obscured or
submerged in financial statements, schedules, and/or tables. The attached
organizational chart provides a pictograph of the lines of authority and
responsibility with the system.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Chatter of the City of Rockport requires that the City Council
appoint certified public -accountants, who will be responsible to the
Council, to perform an independent audit of all funds and group of
accounis of the Cily on an annual basis. The firm of Michael Arnold
P.L.L.C. was selected by the Council to perform this function, Generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards set forth in the General
Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the
auditors in conducting the engagement, The auditors’ repoit on the basic
financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules is included in the financial section of this repon.




MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The report is published to provide to the City Council, to our citizens, and to
represeniatives of financial institutions and other interested persons, detailed information
concerning the financial condition of the City government, To that end, the reporl has been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standavds Board (GASB).

The City’s accounting system has been designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolule, assurance regarding:

» The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and

» ‘The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a controf should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgment by management, Al internal control evaluations occur within the

above framework,

GOVERNING BODY

The City was incorporated on May 29, 1871 under the laws of the State of Texas and
adopled the Council-Manager form of government on April 12, 1983, The City Council is
composed of the Mayor and four council members. The City Council and Mayor are
responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations governing the City,
appointing members of various statutory and advisory boards and the City Manager, City
Secretary, City Attorney, Municipal Judge and Alternate Municipal Judge. As chief
adminisirative officer, the City Manager is responsible for enforcement of laws and
ordinances and appoints and supervises the heads of departments of the City Organization,

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

The Depariment of Finance operates under the direction of the Finance Director, who
is appointed by the City Manager; with the consensus of the City Council, Activitics of the
Department of Finance are control of, custody and disbursement of City funds. Other
activifics of the department include risk management, payroll, purchasing, computer
managemenl and the preparation of the annual budget and interim and annval linancial

reporls.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT AND ITS SERVICES

Services provided by the City under the general governmental functions include
police, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and zoning, enginecring, tralfic
control, parks opetation and maintenance, code enforcement, building permits, floodplain
management, building, plumbing, clectrical inspections and general and administrative
services. A private firm provides solid waste collection and disposal services under a
contract with the City. In addition, water, natural gas, and sewer, beach park, and the
community aquatic park services are provided under an Enterprise Fund concept, with user
charges set by the City Council {o ensure adequate coverage of operating expenses and

paymenis on outstanding debt.

The Community Aquatic Park is considered to be a blended component unit of the
City. The City acts as the “managing partner” of the County wide governmental “joint
venture” consisting of the City of Rockport, Aransas County, and the Town of Fulton.
Policy is set by a Swimming Pool Operations committee which consists of a voting member
from the city, county and schoof district, plus a citizen member of the City Parks Board and

the Director of Parks and Leisure Services.

The City of Rockport and Aransas County entered into an Interlocal Agreement
creating the City/County Communications Center, combining dispatch services. The
agreement created a Dispatching Services Board consisting of one representative from cach
entity and the Dispatch Administrator.

Additional Interlocal Agreements between the City of Rockpott and Aransas County
help to eliminate the duplication of services, and help reduce costs for both entities. These
include Animal Control Services, Jail and Detention Services, Road Consiruction and
Maintenance within the cily limits of Rockport, Septic System Inspections, Sanitation

Services and Tax Collection,

A counlywide Geographic Information System (GIS) was created with the City of
Rockport, Aransas County and Aransas County Appraisal District. Each entity will be
responsible for the creation and maintenance of their own overlays.

The Aransas County and City of Rockport Public Safety Center completed a joint
law enforcement office building housing the Rockport Police Department and the Aransas
County Sheriff”s Office, This is another example of the City and County joining together (o
save laxpayers dollars. Created by an Interlocal Agreement, the venture is a 50/50 split
between the City of Rockport and Aransas County for all maintenance and expenses related

to the Public Safety Center,
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On May 30, 2008 the City purchased Aransas Natural Gas Company, a privately
owned natural gas company located in Rockpoit. The Natural Gas Division provides service
to Rockport, the Town of Fulton and Aransas County as far north as Lamar. (See more in the

Management, Discussion and Analysis section)

BUDGETING

In accordance with the City Charter, on or before the first repular scheduled meeting
in August, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget and budget
message for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The proposed budget shall
contain the budget message prepared by the City Manager, detailing estimates of all revenue
and expendituves, debt requircments, and a draft of the budget ordinance. The City Council
shall review the proposed budget and make any appropriate changes prior to publishing the

final budget,

The budget message explains the budget in fiscal terms and in terms of the work
submitted with the budget. It outlines the proposed financial programs of the City for the
cnsuing fiscal year, the capital program, and capital projects for the budget year. The budget
message will describe the important features of the budget and indicate any major changes
from the current year in financial policies, expenditures and revenues including the reasons

for such changes.

‘The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all City funds and activities
and shall be in such form as the Cily Manager deems desirable or the City Council may
require, The detailed line item budget is presented for administrative control. It shall be
arranged to depict proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming
year, along with comparative figures for actual and budget income and expenditure for the
preceding fiscal year; budgeted and estimated income and expenditure for the current fiscal
year; and actual income and expenditure of the cumrent year projected to year estimates for

the current years,

The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance on or before
September 27, Pleasc refer to Note A in Notes to the Financial Statements for more detail on

budgets and budgelary accounting.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The City of Rockport is the county seat for Aransas County and is located 30 miles
noirtheast of Corpus Christi. There are approximately 13.37 square miles of land within the

City’s corporate boundary.
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ECONOMIC TRENDS

Ranked in The 100 Best Small Art Towns of America, and recognized among the lop
retirement spots in the nation by America’s Best Places to Refire, Rockport is a wonderful
place to live and visit alike. Guifscapes Magazine’s “2011 Readers Choice Best Gulf Coast
Towns” listed Rockport number four in the top ten, In 2009 Rockport was hailed as a
coastal dream town by Coastal Living Magazine. Better Homes and Gardens in its April
2007 issue listed Rockport-Fuiton the number five destination as a “long weekend hotspot”
for spring migration bird watching. Texas Meetings and Events list Rockport-Fulton as a
greal Guif Coast getaway for a business meeting, board neeting, cte.

Property values in the City of Rockport increased from $538,391,491 in 2000 to
$1,436,910,753 in 2011. This can be attributed to the annexation of several arcas, increased
property values, as well as, the increase in development within the City,

Pernits for single family homes have increased fiom approximately 66 annually to
83 in 2010, largely due to the economic conditions of the couniry realizing a slight
improvement, Rockport is made up largely of second homes, with the slight growth in ihe
market these home starts have increased. The population of Rockport has grown by 16% in
the last tem (10) years going from 7,385 in 2000 to 8,766 in the U.S, Census Bureau 2010

Census,

Sales tax revenues have increased from $1,117,080 in 2000 to $1,773,673 in 2011.
This is a 37% increase in sales tax revenues over a ten (10) year period. Winter Texans and
“sunumer visitors have helped in the increase of sales tax.

The City has taken several steps in recent years to enhance the quality of life for the
citizens of Rockport. In the past few years the City has purchased 50 acres of land to keep as
green space and several acres behind the Memorial Park for expansion of that park in the
future. The two phase Hike and Bike Trail that will be partially funded by a TxDOT grant
has been planued for the Tule Park, A grant from Texas Depariment of Agriculture (Texas
Yes) helped complete a beautification project on Austin Street. The project converted the
four lane boulevard to a two lane sireet with diagonal parking, which provides greater
pedestrian and handicapped street crossing safety.

Rockport Beach has the privilege of being designated as Texas’ first Blue Wave
Beach. The Beach continues to catry the title of Blue Wave Beach, earning this designation

for twelve years in a row.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City’s staff, following specific divectives of the City Council and the City Manager,
has been involved in a variety of projects throughout the year. These projects reflect the
City’s commitment of ensuring that its cilizens are able to live and work in a highly

desirable community and include the following;

o Utility/Development Complex- this project is a complex that will house the utility,
public works, and building and development departiments. The facility will be
located on property owned by the City along Highway 35 Relief Route (also known
as, Highway 35 ByPass). This will offer a “one stop shop” for contractors and
developers, as all the departments will be at the same location, Presently the
building and development departiment is housed at a sepavate facilily and the utility
and public works facility has out grown their current facility. This project is funded

through the 2009 Construetion Bonds.

¢ Elevated Water Storage Tank- This project will construct a 2 million gallon clevated
waler slorage tank on property owned by the City along Highway 35 Relief Route
where the Utility/Development Complex will be located. This will increase the
City’s Elevated Water Storage fo 3 tanks,

o Waste Water Treaiment Plant Nutrient Removal- This project will reduce nitrogen
ouipul of the wastewater reatment plant, This is to be proactive and part of the
solution o insure nitrogen levels in Little Bay are at an ideal level for the growth of
seagrass. This project will be funded througly Capital Impact Fees.

* Master Plan Drainage Improvements- This project to improve drainage by
constructing drainage road crossings at Spanish Woods Drive, the entry to road to
the Sanctuary Subdivision, FM 1781 to the drainage outfall to Copano bay, FM 2165
at the Whistler’'s Cove Subdivision and FM 2165 at the Wastewater Treatment Plant.
This project is funded by the 2067 Construction Bonds,

»  South Rockport Drainage Project- This project will improve drainage by building
outfall infrastructure on Loop 70, Business 35, First Strect and Second Street which
is joinily serving Rockpott and Aransas County drainage systems. This project is
funded by a grant through the Ike and Dolly relief fund money as mitigation to
prepare for future stonns,

o Tule Hike and Bike Trail. With the acquisition of 34 acres the long-awaited Tule
Creek Hike and Bike Trail which was originally approved in 1999 will become a
reailly., The total cost of construction is $717,048 of which $573,638 is funded by a
matching grant for the Texas Department of Transportation with the Cily providing
$143,170 as its match, The project should be begun and finished in the coming fiscal

year.
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*  Community Center- The 2004 Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan
reflected that the “results for the park facilities nceds assessment express an
overwhelning need for a recreation/community center in the City of Rockport”.
$2,000,000 has been budgeted in the 2007 Capital Improvements Funding for this
purpose, The City Council decided to take the current design and put it out for bid o
determine the actual cost of construction which is estimated by the architect to be
2,400,000 for this 17,897 square foot facility.

BUDGET AS COMPARED TO ACTUAL

General Government Fund Revenues — Budget as Compared to Actual

The Geucral Government Fund Revenues are budgeted based on historical
information and the current economic climate of the City. For a detailed comparison of
actual General Governmental Fund revenues with budget amounts, sce “Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAADP
Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Governmental Fund Types and Govermnental
Expendable Trust Funds: in the financial section of this report (Exhibit A-2),

General Governmental Fund Expendiivres — Budget as Compared to Actual

The proposed expenditures in the General Governmenial Funds are budgeted based
on historical demand for services and inflationary trends. For a detailed comparison of
actual General Governmental fund Expenditures with budgeied amounts, see “Combined
State or Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Goevernment Fund Types and Govermnenial Expendable
Trust Funds” in the financial section of this report (Exhibit A-3).

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The City had no fiduciary funds at September 30, 2006.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Proprietary Funds are those funds thal are self-supporting. The Proprietary
Funds of the City include the Utility Iund, Sanitation Fund, Natural Gas Fund, Communilty
Aquatic Park Fund, and the Beach Park Fund. The Utility System Fund operates with
revenues generated by the sale of water and wastewater services. The Natural Gas Fund
operates with revenues generated by the sale of natural gas sales. The Sanitation Fund is
used to record all revenues and expenditures for the Solid Waste contract. The Community
Aquatic Park Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures for the community aquatic
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park, The Beach Park Fund accounts for all revennes and expenditures associated with the
operalion of the Rockport Beach Park,

The operating expenditures are those incurred by the delivery of those services. A
more complete discussion of the financial operations of this fund can be found in Notes A
and L. As shown below, both the revenues and expendilures were increased from the prior

year.

AD VALOREM TAXLS

State statutes require the value of the property as of January 1 of each year be used as
the basis for calculating ad valorem tax for the ensuing fiscal year. The estimated adjusted
taxable value of property in the City at January 1, 2010 was $1,368,098,538 and was taxed
at $.310008 per onc hundred dollars of assessed value resulting in an adjusted tax roll {taxes

receivable) of $3,928,771.

Collections
Current taxes of $3,932,641 represcnting 99.9% of the adjusted tax rofl were

collected during fiscal year 2010-2011. The collection rate was comparable to the year end,
Current tax collections have exceeded 97% in cach of the last ten years.

Allocation of Ad Valorem Taxes

The revenue to be received from current tax collections is distributed between the
General Fund and the Debt Service Fund according to the rates for allocation set when ihe
budget ordinances are adopted. Allocation of property tax revenues by purpose for fiscal
year 2010 and the preceding four years is given in the following table. The amounts in the
table are per one hundred dollars of assessed value.

200820075 U 2006
168320 1605 1629
13068047 1185 0814

General Fund 65133

6,10, Deb 52701 2.5 33548 = 1306
Total 310008 298681 299000 2790 2443
AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awaided a Certilicate of
Achievement for Exccllence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the year ended September 30, 2010. This is the eighth year that the City
has applicd for and received this prestigions award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City published an casily readable and efficiently organized basic financial
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reporl. This report satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certlificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that
our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are submitiing it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget
Presentation for its annual appropriated budget since October 1, 2002. The budget for
October 1, 2011 has been submitted for review and notification of an award is awaited. In
order to qualily for the Distingnished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget
document is judged on proficiency in several categories including policy documentation,
financial planning and organization,

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Fittance Department,
The City Manager, the entire City staff, and the City Council for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operation of the City in a responsible and progressive

manner.
Respectfully submitted,

Howad

Patty Howard
Director of Finance
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Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 729-3545
FAX (3613 790-9692

501 E. MARKET
P.0. BOX 1286
ROCGKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1285

Independent Auditor's Report on Financlal Statements

Gity Council

Cily of Rockporl, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockporl, Texas 78382

Members of the City Council:

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivities, the businessype
activilies, each major fund, and the aggregale remaining fund information of City of Rockport, Texas as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Cily's basle financial statemenls as
listed in the lable of contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of Cily of Rockporl, Texas's
management. Our responsibilily is {o express opinions on these financial stalements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the slandards applicable lo financial audils contained in Government Auditing Standards,
isstied by the Comptroller General of the United Slales. Those standards require that we plan and parform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent.
An audil includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financiat
staternents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significan! estimales
made by managemeni, as well as evaluating the overall financial slatement presentation. We believe thal our

audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred lo above presenit fairly, In all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governinental aclivities, the businass-lype activiles, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Cily of Rockport, Texas as of September 30, 2011, and the respeclive
changes In financlal position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformily
with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America.

L

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 16,
2012, on our consideratlon of Cily of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial reporling and on our
tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulalions, coniracts, and grant agreemenls and other
malters. The purpose of that reporl is lo describe the scope of our lesling of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuils of thal lesting, and not {o provide an opinton on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. Thalt report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resulis of our audit.




Accounting principles generaily accepted in fhe United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgelary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary
Information in the table of conlents be presented to supplement the baslc financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who consliders it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements In an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied cerlain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with audiling standards generaily
accepled in the United States of America, which consisied of inguiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inguiries, the basic financlal statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence lo express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Clly of Rockporl, Texas's financial statements as a whole. not a required part of lhe financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expendilures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U, 8. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audils of Stafes,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial slatements and the schedule of expendilures
of federal awards are the responsibilily of management and were derived from and relale direcily lo the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The informalion has been
subjecled lo the auditing procedures applied in the audil of the financial statemenis and cerlain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direclly to the underlying accounting and
other records used lo prepare the financial stalements or to the financial statements themselves, and olher
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled Stales of
America. in our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respecls in relation to the financial
statemenls as a whole. not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do nol express an opinion or provide any assurance on I,

Respeclfully submitted,

%/% S Sl

Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

March 16, 2012



Management's Discussion and Analysis



Our discussion and analysis of the City of Rockport’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011,
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page 1 and the City’s financial
statements, which begin on page 12.

Financial Highlights

s The assets of the City of Rockport exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2011 by
$34,038,716(net assets). Of this amount, $8,619,273 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

o The government’s total net assets increased by $1,061,242 in 2011,

o At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $13,314,156, a decrease of 8.2% in comparison
with the prior year. Approximately $3,534,604 (26.6%) of this total amount is
available for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance),

¢ The General fund reported an unreserved fund balance of $3,534,604 or, 63.6% of
total general fund expenditures.

e The City’s total long-term debt decreased by $605,495 (2.5%) during the current
fiscal year.

OVERVIEVW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business,

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of

the City is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
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cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Rockport that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, tourism, culture and recreation and interest and fiscal charges. The business-type
activities of the City include the Water, Wastewater and Natural Gas Utility System,
Sanitation, Rockport Beach Park and the Community Aquatic and Skate Park.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rockport, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Rockport can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Currently, the City does not have any fiduciary funds,

Governmental Funds, Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requircments,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances for a General Fund, Debt Service
Fund, and the Capital Improvements Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other seven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated



presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance
with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 20 of
this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains four different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for
its Utility System, Rockport Beach Park, Sanitation and the Community Aquatic Park.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprictary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Utility System, Rockport Beach Park, Sanitation and the Community
Aquatic Park. Only the Utility System Fund is considered to be a major fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 through 25 of this
repott.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 26
through 45 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of
Rockport’s operations. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with
non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information.on pensions. Combining and individual
fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 46 of this repot.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Rockport, assets exceeded liabilities by
$34,432,141 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

$21.5 million or 71%, reflects the City’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,

machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire these assets which is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to



repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves

cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities,

Net Assets at September 30, 2010

Table 1
Governmaental Activities Business Type Activitles Total Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets
Current and Other Assels 8 5656578 § 5,893.479 $6,412,063 $6,464,616 $ 12,068,641 $12,358,005
Restricted Assels 8,718,014 9,405,803 7.427 887 9,438,947 16,146,901 18,844,750
Capitat Assets, net of .
accumulated depreciation 21,461,771 21,030,563 30,188,625 27,422,514 51,650,396 48,453,077
Total Assets 35,020,997 36,329,845 44,028,575 43,326,077 79,865,938 79,655,922
Liabilities
Current & Due Within One Year § 2,189,795 1,454,451 3,202,955 2652968 $ 5,392,750 4,107,419
Due in More Than One Year 22,326,906 23,504,025 18,107,566 19,215,861 40,434,472 42,719,886
Total Liabilities 24,516,701 24,958,476 21,310,621 21,868,829 45,827,222 46,827,305
Net Assets
invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt $ 7,539,674 6,821,463 17,287,725 16,563,623 $ 24,827,389 23,385,086
Restricted for:
Debt Service 407,389 347,272 184,655 185,348 592,044 532,621
Unrestricted 3,373,599 4,202,634 5,245,674 4,708,276 8,619,273 8,910,910
Total Net Assets $ 11,320,662 $ 11,371,369 22,718,054 $ 21,457,248 5 34,038,716 $ 32,828,617




An additional portion of the City’s net assets (1%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
assets (25%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. It has been the practice of the City to finance major maintenance and
rehabilitation of infrastructure or invest in new capital assets by issuance of long term debt
and cautious and conservative draws on these unrestricted net assets. It is anticipated that
this will continue to be our practice in the future.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. These positive balances are indicative of the
conservative fiscal practices of the City with combine careful budgeting procedures and
moderate operating activities at all staff levels,

Changes in Net Assets
Table 2

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011

Total Government

2010

Program revenues

Charges for services § 703,850 3

740,704 $ 10,660,270 $ 9,827,888 $ 11,264,120 $ 10,568,592

Operaling grants and contributions 575,842 521,842 183,750 118,583 759,692 640,425
Capital grants and contributions 79,300 1,111,885 267,941 22,000 347,241 1,133,885
Total program revenues 1,359,092 2,374,431 11,111,961 9,668,471 12,471,053 12,342,902
General revenues
Properly taxes $ 4,024,879 3,996,835 - - $§ 4,024,879 3,996,835
Sales taxes 1,799,286 1,737,376 - - 1,799,286 1,737,376
Franchise and other taxes 807,931 789,168 - - 807,931 789,168
Occupancy taxes 647,278 477,688 - - 647,278 477,688
Interest 50,110 122,596 $ 46,943 72,781 97,053 152,430
Miscelfaneous 59,003 53633 - 71,877 59,003 125,510
Total revenues 8,747,579 7,177,296 11,158,904 144,668 19,906,483 7,279,007
Expenses

General government 1,646,376 1,536,874 - - 1,646,376 1,536,874
Public safety 3,439,538 3,107,677 - - 3,439,538 3,107,677
Public Works 1,528,189 1,802,657 - - 1,628,189 1,802,657
Culture and recreation 734,248 542,142 - 734,248 542,142
Tourism 476,810 480,483 - - 476,810 480,483
Utilities - - 7,643,247 8,192,386 7,643,247 8,192,386
Sanitation - - - - - -
Beach Park - - 662,288 650,846 662,288 650,646
Community Aquatic Center - - 306,478 307,583 306,478 307,583
Natural Gas - - 1,415,532 - 1,415,532 307,583
Interest and fiscal charges 999,535 1,060,140 - - 999,535 1,060,140
Total expenses 8,824,696 8,529,973 10,020,545 9,150,615 18,845,241 17,680,588



Change in net assets

Increase{Decrease) before transfers (77,117 1,021,754 1,138,359 962,514 1,061,242 1,984,268
Transfers 26,410 534,888 (26,410) (534,888} -
Prior Period Adj - 148,857 - 148,857 -
Net assels at beginning of year 11,371,369 8,814,727 21,457,248 21,029,622 32,828,617 30,844,349
Net assets at end of year $11,320,662 $11,371,369 22,718,054 $ 21,457,248 § 34,038,716 $ 32,828,617

The table above illustrates the comparative detail of changes in net assets of the City of
Rockport.

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities include the functions of general
government, tourism, cultural and recreations, public safety and public works, Payment of
interest on long-term debt is also considered a governmental activity and it is considered a

class of activity but not a function of government. These are the basic services and cost

centers any city provides to ifs citizens.

As shown in Table 2 and the Exhibit A-2 of the Basic Financial Statements, the
expenditures incurred in providing these services are netted against the program revenues
received by the City for these services. Because the City is not a for-profit entity, the cost
to deliver the services far exceeds the program revenues generated, This deficit of new
expenditures, $7,465,604, is overcome by the general revenues of taxes, investment
earnings, miscellaneous income and transfers in totaling $7,414897. The overall change in
Net Assets resulting from governmental activities at the end of the year was ($50,707).

Business-Type Activities. As shown in Table 2 and in the Statement of Activities, program
revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $11,111,961 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011. Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were $10,020,545,
resulting in net revenues of $1,091,4168, After the non-program expenses and revenues are
added in, the total change in net assets for the business type activities was $1,111,949.

In the Utility System Fund, the City has little control over the costs of the two products:
water and natural gas delivered to the City’s customers. Water is purchased from the San
Patricio Municipal Water District, and natural gas is purchased from two sources, South
Cross Energy and Gulf Coast Gas Gathering. Water rates were increase by 3% this year for
the first time since 2002, other than pass through increase due to increases from the
supplier. The additional revenue generated will be used to pay debt service for capital
improvements. Wastewater rates were also increased this year by 3%, The additional funds
generated by this increase will be used to make payments on the Cured in Place Pipe
(CIPP) Project portion of the 2007 Bond Issue and other projects. The City purchased
Aransas Natural Gas Company, a privately owned company, on May 30, 2008. The City
adopted the M & O rate that was being charged by Aransas Natural Gas Co. and the fuel
adjustment rate is calculated each month based on the rate natural gas is purchased for, The



City contracts with McLain Decision Support Systems each year to do a rate study to
ensure that the revenues generated by the Utility System Fund will support the associated
expenditures. In future years this study will be expanded to include the natural gas revenue

also.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Rockport uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The City’s funds fall into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds., The focus of the City governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending balances of $13,314,156, a decrease of $1,197,162 compared to the prior year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $3,534,604. This unreserved fund
balance is the amount available without constraints from outside of the City to fund the
City’s normal operations. In order to illustrate the City’s ability to withstand a major
disaster such as a hurricane, it 1s worthwhile to measure the unreserved fund balance in
terms of the number of days of operations is could sustain. For 2011, the daily cost of
operation in the general fund was $15,231(total current expenditures of $5,559,328 divided
by 365 days in the year). The City of Rockport’s unreserved general fund balance would be
able to sustain 232 days in the event of disaster that interrupted normal revenue generation.
The City of Rockport makes every effort to keep the unreserved fund balance at 180 days.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.
During FY 2010-11, the General Fund budget was not significantly amended.

Proprietary Funds. The proprietary funds ended 2011 with combined net assets totaling
$22,718,054 The proprictary funds include the Utility System Fund, Natural Gas Fund,
Sanitation, Rockport Beach Park and the Community Aquatic & Skate Park.

The Water and Sewer Fund and the Natural Gas Fund are the only major funds in this
group.



Proprietary Fund Budgetary Highlights.

During FY 2010-11, the Community Aquatic Park Fund was not amended at all.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City of Rockport’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business type activities as of September 30, 2011 totals at $50,730,740 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes, land, buildings and
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the cwrent fiscal year

was 4.7%.

Major capital asset events during 2011 include the following:

e Community Center - The 2007 Bond included $2,000,000 for the construction of a
Community Center. The Center will be located adjacent to the Community Aquatic
and Skateboard Park, Architects are working on the design of the Center.

» Bay Education Center - The Bay Education Center was constructed by the City of
Rockport with federal funds and City funds for a Parks and Leisure Services
Department expansion which were inctuded in the Center. The Center was built on
land owned by the Aransas County Navigation District. The “District” will also be
an owner of the Center (except for the portion built by the City).

» Linden Street Area Wastewater Collection Line — First-time public sewer service
will be provided for at least 23 households. A total of 28 housing units and three
other structures (churched, businesses) in the eastern Linden Street area will have
first-time access to public sewer, of which 22 low and moderate income households
will received a connection as part of the grant project funded by a Texas
Community Development block Grant Program. This project will be completed in
the Fiscal Year 2010-2011.

For a complete analysis of the changes in capital assets, the reader is encouraged to review
Note E of the Notes of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-Term Debt. The City of Rockport issued refunding bonds debt in 2011, and

refunded a current issue that will result in savings to the City based on cuirent interest
rates. See additional information on long-term debt on pages 37-39 of the audit.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

During the budget process for fiscal year 2011-12 the elected and appointed officials
considered many factors including the forces driving the economy in their budget
decisions. The housing starts, development, and raw land being turned into retail and
housing can each be measured by the number of new water connections recorded. An
increase in Hotel Occupancy Tax and sales tax indicate an increase in tourism. There has
been an increase in registered voters since 2000, going from 5,987 in 2006 to 5,987 in
2010, equating to a 4% increase. The 2010 U. S. Census reports the population for
Rockport at 8766 in 2010, this up from 7,385 in the 2000 census.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to inform the citizens, taxpayers and customers of the City
of Rockport as well as its investors and creditors about the City’s finances and to provide
accountability for the public support that it receives. If you have any questions about the
report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Director’s Office at the
City of Rockport, 622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas 78382.
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Basic Financial Statements



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS
Caslhy and Inveslimenls

Receivablas { nel of allowances for uncollectibles):

Properly taxes

Olher taxes

Accounts

Special assassments

Intergovernmentat

Olher
Inlernal balances
Inventories
Resiricied assels:

Cash and Invesiments
Bond issuance cosls
Capital assots:

Land

Contrucilon in progross

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings

Utiily sysiem

Machinery and equipment

infrastruciure

Accumulated depreciation

Total Assels

LIABILITIES

Accounis payabie
Accrued liabililes
Accrued interesl payable
Payable from reslricled assels
Customer Deposils
Noncurrent liabitities:

Duo within one year

Due in more than one year

Tolal Liabliiles

NET ASSETS

Invested In Capital Assels, Net of Related Dehbl

Rastricled For:
Debt Service

Unreslricled

Total Nef Assels

The accompanylng noles are an integral pari of this slatement.

Governmental

Business-{ype

EXRIBIT A-1

Aglivilies Aclivities Tolal
$ 4,184,710  § 5924206 % 10,108,916
146,455 -- 146,455
426,529 - 426,529
88,908 1,313,106 1,402,104
7,208 4,108 11,316
105,462 - 105,452
1,739 - 1.738
241,831 {241,831) -
95,448 166,228 252,686
8,719,014 7,427,887 16,146,901
357,208 256,236 613,444
4,802,767 214,864 5,417,724
120,877 789,061 808,038
4,771,680 1,728,904 6,500,584
1,100,951 3,361,402 4,462,353
- 40,059,940 40,059,940
2,776,345 2,176,579 4,852,924
11,566,458 -- 11,566,458
_ (3,776,307) (19,142,215) (22,918,522)
_ 35,837,363 44,028,575 79,865,938
306,686 895,356 1,201,942
66,583 23,667 80,250
123,340 92,345 215,685
16,333 172,805 188,238
- 854,025 854,026
1,687,953 1,164,657 2,852,610
22,326,906 18,107,566 40,434,472
24,516,701 21,310,621 46,827,222
7,639,674 17,287,725 24,827,389
407,389 184,665 582,044
3,373,599 5,245,674 8,619,273
$_ 11320662 § 22,718,064 $_ 34,038,716
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operaling Capilal
Chargos for Granis and Grants and
FuncifonsiPrograms Expenses Servicas Conlribulions Contributions
Governmenlal Activities
General governmant $ 1,646,376 § 17,953 § - -
Public safety 3,439,638 507,266 575,842 -
Public works 1,528,189 177,694 -- -
Culivre and racreafion 734,248 948 -- 79,300
Tourism 476,810 -- - --
Interesl and flscal charges 099,535 - - --
Total governmental aclivities 8,524,696 703,850 575,942 76,300
Business-lypeo Aclivilies:
Sanilation - 17,039 - --
Whaler & Sewer 7,636,247 8,377,063 - 267,941
Beach Park 662,288 425,024 95,000 --
Communily Aqualic Canter 306,478 114,642 88,750 --
Nalural Gas 1,415,632 1,725,602 - -
Total Business-lype Activilies 10,020,545 10,660,270 183,760 267,941
347,241

Total Primary Government

$ 1“8,345,241 $ 11,364,120 $ 759,602

General Revenues:
Properly Taxos, Leived for General Puposes
Properly Taxes, Levied for Debt Sorvices
Sales Taxes
Franchise Taxes and Other Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Unreslricled Investmeni Eamnings
Ciher Revenues
Transfers
Toiat Genaral Revenues
Change In Net Assels
het Assels - Beginning
Prior Perlod Adjustment
Nel Assels - Ending

The ascompanying notes are an integral parl of his slaterment.
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Nel (Expense) Revenue and Changes it Nel Assels

Govermmeital

Business-lype

Activilias Actlvitles Total
% {1,628,423) ] (1,628,423}
(2,356,341) {2,356,341)
{1,350,495) (1,350,495)
{654,000} {654,000}
{478,810) {476,810)
{999,536) (999,535}
(7,465,600 . (7,465,604)
- 3 17,039 17,039
- 1,008,757 1,008,757
-- {141,364) (141,364}
- (103,0886) (103,086)
- 310,070 310,670
- 1,081,418 1,691,416
(7,465,604) 1,091,416 {8,374,188)
2,046,542 - 2,046,542
1,978,337 - 1,078,337
1,799,286 - 1,799,286
807,931 - 807,931
647,278 -- 647,278
60,110 46,943 97,053
59,003 -- 69,003

26,410 (26,410} -

7,414,897 20,533 7,435,430
(60,707) 1,111,949 1,081,242
11,374,369 21,457,248 32,828,617
- 148,857 148,857
$ 11,320,662 § 22,718,054 __ 34,038,716
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

General Debt
Fund Service
ASSETS T
Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,048,934 $ 344,532
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncolleclibles):
Properly laxes 83,698 62,857
Olher faxes 218,336 -
Accotinis 75,000 -
Special assessmenis -- --
Intergovernmenlal -- -
Other 1,739 -
Due from cther funds 470,663 --
inventories 56,427 -
Restricled assels;
Cash and Investments -- --
Total Assets $ 3,954,697 $ 407,389
Liabilities:
Accounls payable $ 158,644 $ -
Accrued expendllures 46,424 --
Due lo olher funds - -
Payable from restricled assels - - -
Deferrad revenuo 158,508 62,857
Tolal Liabilitles 363,666 ez,qu‘
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 56,427 --
Reslrlcted -- 344,632
Commitled - -
Assignhed - -~
Unassigned 3,634,604 --
Totaf fund balances 3,691,031 344,532
Total Liabllitles and Fund balances $ 3,954,697 $ 407,389

The accompanylng noles are an Integral part of ihis statement. i
I
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2007
Cerlificale of

Obligation

5,780,807

$ 5,780,807

5,765,474

5,765,474

8 5,780,807

2005 Other
Certificate of Governmental

Obligalion Funds

$ -- $ 744,542

$_._ 2,938,207 $__ 1079393

- 208,183
-- 13,098
- 7,208
- 105,452

2,038,207

$ - $ 147,780

$

- 8,711
-- 228,832

- 21,158

- 404481

2,938,207 475,412
- (134,170)
- 333,670

2,938,207 874,912

2,938,207 $ 1,079,393

EXHIBIT A-3

Tolal
Governmenlaf
Funds

$ 4,138,008

5 14160493

146,465
428,529
838,008
7,208
106,452
1,739
470,663
56,427

8,719,014

$ 308,424

53,135
228,832

16,333
242,613
846,337

56,427
9,523,826
{134,170}
333,670
3,534,604

13,314,158

$

14,160,493



EXHIBIT A-4

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Tolal fund balances - governmental funds balance sheslt & 13,314,156

Amounls reported for governmendal activities in the Statement of Nel Assels
("SNA") are differenl because:

Capital assels usad in governmenlal activilles are not roperted in the funds. 21,447,812
Propaerly 1axes recelvable unavallable fo pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 146,455
The assels and llabilifles of internal service funds are Included in governmental aclivities In the SNA, 97,072
Payables for bond principal which are nol due in the currenl period are nol reporied In the funds. {21,463,113)
Payables for capilal leases which are not due in the current perlod are nol reported In the funds. {1,180,000)
Payables for bond Interest which are not dus In the current period are nol reported in the funds, (123,340}
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in {he current period are not reporied in {he funds. {352,803)
Other long-lerm assels are nol available lo pay for current period expendilures and are deferrad In the funds. 357,208
Court fines receivable unavallable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 75,000
OBEP Obilgalion In nol recorded in the funds, (1,018,943)
Ulility recelvables unavallable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 13,950
Assessmenls receivable unavailable lo pay {or current perlod expenditures are deferred in the funds. 7,208
Mot assels of govaernmental activitles - Slatement of Nel Assels $ 11,320,862

The accompanying noles are an Inlegrat part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND GHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and pemmils
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Tolal revenues

Expendilures:

Current:
General governmeni
Public safely
Public works
Cullure and recreaiion
Tourlsm

Capital oullay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance cost

Total expendilures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under) expendifures

Other Ninancing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
lssuance of cerifficalas of obligation
Premium on bonds sold
interest an bonds sold
Paymenl lo refunding escrow agent

Total olher financing sources {uses)

Nel change in fund balance

Fund balance, beglinning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of fhis slalerenl,

18

General

_____Fund

$ 4,643,440
177,604

948

309,625

10,277

49,519

___ 5,191,503

1,266,386
2,217,963
1,313,366

578,111

183,602

5,550,398

(367,825)

851,790
{1,320,308)

_ (i88,518)
(836,343)

4,427,374
$ 3,591,031

Debt
Service

$ 1,969,101

840

1,665,041

978,736
970,608
41,545
1,890,979

(21,038)

22,438

1,454,824
61,942

7,935

_ (1.475,220)
71,919

50,881

203,851




EXHIBIT A-5

2007 2006 Other Total
Cerlllicate of Certllicate of Governmental Governmental
Obligation __Obligatlon Funds . Funds
g - $ - 3 828,154 $ 7,440,695
- - -- 177,694
.- -- 656,242 655,242
- - - 948
- -- 18,042 329,587
18,243 12,193 822 42,175
- - 8,484 _ 59,003
18243 ] 12,193 1,613,444 8705324
- -- 8,053 1,274,439
- -- 1,016,702 3,234,665
- - 7.952 1,321,318
- - 53,788 831,807
- - 476,810 476,810
524,202 55,534 256,176 1,019,504
- - 28,038 1,007 674
-- - 6,662 977,350
-- -- - 41,545
_________ 524,292 - 55,534 1,866,069 9,985,202
(506,049) {43,341) (341,625) {1,279,878)
- - 592,342 1,566,570
{162,731) - (60,298} {1,633,335)
- - - 1,454,824
- - - 61,942
- - - 7,935
- - -- (1,475,220)
T {152,731) T - - 632,046 B8
(658,780} {43,341) 290,421 (1,197,182)
8,424,254 2,981,548 384,491 14,511,318
$ 5765474 $ 2,088,207 $ 674,912 $ 13,314,166
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EXHIBIT A-6

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - lolal governmental funds $ (1,197,162)

Amounls raported for governmentat aclivities In the Statement of Activillos
("SOA") are different because:

Capilal oullays are not reporied as expenses In the SOA. 1,019,604
The depreciatlon of capilal assels used in governmental aclivitles is not reporied Jn the funds, (686,551)
Certaln property lax revenues are defarred in the funds. This is the change in these amaunts this year. 13,254
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure In the funds but is nol an expense in the SOA, 2,417,894
Repayment of capltal lease principal is an expendilure In the fupds but Is nol an expense In the SOA, 65,000
Bond issuance costs and similar ftems are amertized In the SOA but not In the funds. {28,134)
Amorlization of deferred loss on refunding Is racorded In the SOA but not In he funds (23,728)
(Increase} decrease in acciued Interes! from beginning of period to end of period, 18,787
The nel revenue {oxpenss) of internal seivice funds is reported with governmentai aclivilies. 63,041
Compensaled absences are repoiled as ihe amount earnad in the SOA bul as the amount paid in the funds. (39,845)
Cerlain ulility recelvables are defersed in the funds, This Is the change In these amounts Ihis year. 1,566
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current rescurces in the funds, (1,454,824}
Bond premiums are reporied in the funds bul not in the SQA. {61,942)
Bond issuance cosls are reported in the funds bul not In the SOA. 41,545
Amorilzation of bond premium Is not reporied in the funds, 30,390
Change In current OBEP cbligalion Is nof reported in the funds . (329,502)
Change In nel assels of governmental aclivilies - Slalement of Aclivities $ (60,707}

The accompanying notss are an inlegral part of this statemenl.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS

Assaets:
Current assels:

Cash and cash equivalenis
Receivables { nef of allowances for uncolleclibles):

Accounts

Special assessments

inventories

Tolal current assets

Noncurrenl assels:
Restricted assels:

Cash and cash equivalents
Aecounis receivable - noncurrent

Bond issue cosis

Capital assefs;
Land
Bulldings

Improvemants olther than buildings

Waler sysfem
Sewer sysiem

Natural gas syslem

Machinery and equipment

Accumuiated depreciation
Tolal noncurrent assals

Tolal Assels

LIABILITIES

Current Liabililies:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due {o other funds

Accrued inleresi payable

Cuslomer deposils

Compensaled absences
Bonds and cerlificates of obligation -

current portion

Tolal current llabililies

Noncurrent Hlabliities:

Bonds and cerlificales of obligation payable
Compensaled absences
Toial noncurrent Habililies

Total liabilities

MET ASSETS:

Invesiment in Capltat Assets, Nel of Relaied Debt
Restriciad for Debi Service
Unrestricted Nel Assels

Total Net Assels

Enterprise
Fund _

Waler & Sewer
Fund

3 5,409,279

772,674
4,108
100,307

7,427,887
192,235
256,236

110,654
273,263
19,035,257
19,171,683

1,987,921
__{15,770,219)
32,684,207

$ 39,759,536

3 484,954
19,683

92,345

835,195
100,000

1,064,657
2,697,134

18,079,475
) 16,182
"TT18,005,657
20,865,696

13,698,010
184,655
5,013,175

$_ 16,893,840

21

Enterprise
Fund
Natural
Gas
Fund

$ 252,848

194,009

55,931
502,878

1,853,000

(200,743)
1,652,267

$__ 2455135

§ 13,136

§

946

14,081

3,868
. 3,868
17,949

1,652,257

484,929

2137486



EXHIBIT A-7

Nonmajor
internal Service
Fund
Nonmajor Tolal T
Enterprise Enlerprise Flaal
Funds Funds Fund -
$ 262,079 $ 5,924,206 $ 46,702
154,198 1,120,871 -
_ 4,108 -
- 156,238 40,021
416,277 7205423 86,723
- 7,427,887 -
- 192,235 -
- 256,236 -
104,300 214,954 -
1,455,651 1,728,504 -
3,361,402 3,361,402 ”
- 19,035,257 -
- 19,171,683 -
- 1,853,000 .
188,658 2,176,679 17,448
{3,170,553) (19,142,215) (3,488)
1,939,458 36,275,022 13,059
$ 2,356,735 $ 44,270,406 3 100,682
$ 397,287 $ 805,356 3 162
3,038 23,667 3,448
241,831 241,831 -
- 92,345 -
18,530 854,025 -
- 100,000 -
- 1,084,657 .
660,666 37271881 - 3,610
- 18,079,475 -
8,041 28,001 -
8,041 18,107,566 T ’
668,707 21,379,447 3810
1,939,458 17,287,725 13,959
- 184,655
{252,430) 5,245,674 97,072
$ 1,667,028 $_ 22,718,059 S 97,0712
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Enterprise Enterprise
. Fund Fund
Natural
Waler & Sewer Gas
Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES; ’ T
Charges for services 3 8,377,063 3 1,725,602
Tolal Operating Revenues 8,377,083 1,725,602
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services 1,490,268 267,657
Conlraciual services 345,355 32,657
Maintenance 532,494 106,687
Supphies 3,661,535 519,491
Other 37,831 28,273
Amaoiilzalion 20,777 -
Dapreciation 787,671 81,767
Total Operaling Expenses . 6875931 1415532
Operaling Income (Loss) 1,601,132 310,070

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
interes! Ihcome 46,943
Intergovernmental revenue -
{760,316} --

interesl expanse .
Tolal Non-operaling Revenues {Expenses) {713,373) - B

Nel Income {Loss)} before Operaling Transfers 787,759 . . 310,070
Gapiial Conlributions 267,941 -
TRANSFERS:

Interfund {ransfers In 319,269 --

Interfund transfers out {724,531) {271,939)
Change in Nel Assels 660,438 38,131
Net Assets, beginning of year 18,243,402 2,099,055;
Prior Perlod Adjusiment - -
Net Assels, end of year $ 18,893,840 $_ 2,137,186

The accompanying noles are an integraf part of this stalemenl.
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EXHIBIT A-8

Nonmajor
Inlernal Service
__ fund
Nonmajor Tolal
Enlerprise Enlerprise Fleet
Funds Funds Fund

% 557,605 s 10,660,270_ % 661,845
557,605 10,660,270 o 661,845
446,733 2,204,658 134,185

89,645 467,657 10,612
96,768 734,849 --
206,513 4,787,539 445,053

1,541 87,745 384
- 20,777 -

127,566 o 976,904 1745
968,768 9280229 501,979
{411,161) 1,400,041 L 60,868
-- 46,943 --
183,750 183,750 --

o ___ (760,316) -
183,750 {b28,623) -

_ (227,411) _ Bro418 68,866
- 267,941 -
686,791 1,008,060 --
(36,000) {1,032,470) (6,825)

- 423,380 1,111,949 83,041

1,114,791 21,457,248 34,031
148,857 148,857 -
§ 1,687,028 $ 22,718,054 $ 97,072
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EXHIBIT A-9

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENPED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Enterprise Funds
Water & Natural Nonmajor Service
Sewer Gas Enter. Funds Tolals Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activitios:
Cash Received from Customers $ 8,382,431 § 1,935,922 566,529 $ 10,884,882 § 661,845

Cash Received from Grants - - -
Cash Receipts (Payments) for

Operaling Transactions with Other Funds -- - (571,688} {671,588)
Cash Paymenis io Employees for Services (1,490,268) {329,335} (445,142) (2,264,745) (134,185)
Cash Payments {o Other Suppliers for Goods and Services {4,339,460) {1,266,665) {397,116} (6,003,241) (474,133}
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operaling Aclivities 2,552,703 339,922 (847.317) 2,045,308 53,627
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Operating Granis Received - -- 183,750 183,750 --
Transfers From Other Funds 643,190 -- 686,785 1,329,975 -
Transfers From To Other Funds - {200,519) (36,000) (236,519) (6,825)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Actlivities 843190 (200,519) 834,535 1,277,206 (6,825)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-term Debt 1,517,243 - -- 1,517,243 --
Principal and Interest Paid (3,343,100} - - (3,343,160} -
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Asseis (2,826,950) - -- (2,826,850} -
Proceeds from sale of capilal assels - -- --
Amounts paid for bond issuance (6,483) - - {6.483) --
Contribuled Capital 287941 -- - 267,941 v
Nel Cash Provided {Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activilies  (4,391,349) - - (4,391,349) -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Invesiments 46,943 - - 46,943 -
Net Cash Provided {Used) for Invesling Activilles 46,943 - - 469043
Net Increase (Decreass) in Cash and Cash Equivalenis {1,148,513) 139,403 (12,782) (1,021,892} 46,702
Cash and Cash Equivalenis at Beginning of Year 14,608,016 - 274,861 14,884,777 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 13,461,403 % 139,403 262,079 $ 13,862,885 § 46,702

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Operaling Income (L.oss} 3 1,501,132 % 345,826 (411,161)% 1,435,797 $ 59,866
Adjusiments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amoriization 787,571 61,767 127,566 976,904 1,745

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts - - -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Dacrease {Increase) in Receivables (77.,684) (31,089) (13,715} {122,468} -
Decreass (Increase) in Inventories {35,549) {36,984) -- {72,633) 2,516
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses - -- - - 24,282
increase {Decrease) in Accounis Payable 290,744 956 17,774 309,471 162
Increase (Decrease) In Payroll Deduclions - - -- - --
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable -- -- -- -- --
ncrease {Decrease} in Interfund Payables -- -- (671,588) (571,588) {47,175}
increase (Decrease)} in Customer Deposils 83,052 -- 2,216 85,268 --
Increase {(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses 3,440 (574} 1,501 4,457 2,43
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue -- -- -- -- .-

Total Adjustmenis 1,051,571 (5,904) {436,156) 609,511 (18,084}

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3 2,552,703 § 339,922 {847,317) % 2,045,308 % 53,627

The accompanying noles are an infegral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policles

The comblned financlal stalemenis of Clly of Rockpod, Texas {he "City") have been prepared in conformily wilh
accounting princlples applicable o governmenlal uniis which are generally accepled in the United Stales of
America. The Governmenial Accounling Standsrds Board {"GASB") is the accepled standard selling body for

esltablishing governmentat accounting and financial reporting principles.

1.

Reporiing Enlily

The Cily's basic financlal statemenlts Include the accounls of ali is operatlons. The Cilty evalualed whelher any
olher entity should be included in Ihese financial statements. The crilerla for Including organizalions as
component unils within Ihe Clly's repoifing enlity, as sel forth in GASB Siateman! No. 14, “the Financial

Reporting Entity," Include whether:

- the organizatlon is legally separale (can sue and be sued in its name)

- the Cily holds {he corporate powers of the organizalion

- the Clily appoints a voling majorily of the organizalion's board

- the Cily is able to impose its will on the organizalion

- the organtzatlon has the potential lo impose a financlal benefitiburden on the Cily

there is fiscal dependency by ihe organizallon on the Clly

the exclusion of the organizalion would resull in misleading or incomplete financlal statements

Tho Cily also evaluated each legally separale, iax-exempt organizalion whoso resources are used principally to
provide supporl to the Clly fo delermine If ils omisslon from the reporting enfily would resull in financial
stalomenls which are misleading or incomplote, GASB Sialement No. 14 reqtiires Inclusion of such an
organizalion as a componen! unll when: 1) The economic resources recoived or held by lhe organization are
enlirely or almest enlirely for the diract benefit of the Cily, its component unils or its conslivenis; and 2) The Cily
or ils component unils is entilled lo, or has the abllily to olherwise access, a majorlly of the economic resources
recaivad or held by lhe organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the Cily.

Based on these crileria, the Cily has no component units. Addilionally, the Cily Is not a cornponent unil of any
other reporling enlity as deflned by the GASB Statement.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accouniing

a, Basis of Preseniation

Government-wide Slalements: The statement of net assels and the slatemeni of aclivilles Include the
financial activities of the overall govermmeni. Ellminalions been made lo minimize the double-couniing
of Internal aclivilles. These slalements distinguish befween the governmental and business-lype activilies
of the Cily. Governmenlal aclivilies genesally are fnanced through taxes, Infergovernmental revenues,
and ofher nonexchange lransaclions. Business-lype aclivilies are financed In whole or in parl by fees

charged o exlernal parlies.

The slalemenl of activities presenis a comparison between diracl expensas and program revenues for the
differeni business-lype aclivilies of the Cily and for each function of ihe Cily's governmenlal activilles,
Direcl expensas are those ihal are specifically associaled with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly ideniiflable lo a parlicular funclion. The Cily does not allocate hdirect expenses In the stalemeni
of aclivitfes. Program revenues include {a) fees, finos, and charges paid by the reciplenis of goods or
services offered by lhe programs and (b) grants and contribulions [hat are resileled {o mesling the
operalional or capital requirements of a parlicular program. Revenues thal are nol classified as program
revenues, including afl {axes, are presented as general rovenues.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Fund Financfal Slalements: The fund financlal statements provide informalion about the Cify's funds,
with scparale siatements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financlal stalemenis is
on major governmental and entesprise funds, each displayed in a separale column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregaled and reported as nonmalor {unds,

Proprietary fund operaling revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange ftransactions
associated with the principal activily of the fund. Exchange iransactions are those in which each parly recelves
and glves up essenlially equal values, Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidles and Ihveslmen! earnings,
fesult from nonexchange Iransaclions or ancillary activifies,

The Cily reports lhe following major govermmeantal funds:

General Fund. This Is the Cily's primary operailng fund. It accounts for all financlal resourcas of the
Cily excapl those required lo be accounted for It another fund.

Debl Service Fund. This fund is used o account for resources accumulated to make principal and Interest
paymenis on oulsianding bonds.

2007 Cerlificale of Obligation Fund. This fund is used to agcount for the proceeds and relaled expendilures
of lhe 2007 Certificate of Obligalion lssue.

2005 Ceriificale of Obligation Fund. This fund Is used lo account for {he proceeds and related expendilures
of the 2005 Cerlificate of Obligation Issue.

The Cily reporls the following major enterprise funds:

Waler & Sewer Fund, This fund is used io account for the aclivities of providing water and sewer services
to the cifizens of tha City.

Nalural Gas Fund. This fund is used lo account for the aclivilies of providing nalural gas lo the cilizens of
the City.

In addilion, the Cily reports ihe following fund lypes:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used fo account for revenues and expenses relaled o services provided
to parties inside the Cily. These funds facilitate distribution of suppoil cosls to the users of support
services on a coslreimbursement basls. Because the principal usors of the inlernal services are ihe
Cily's governmental aclivilies, this fund lype is included in the "Governmental Aclivilies” column of the

government-wide financial slatements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: These financial slatements are reporied
using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial
slalemenls are reporied using the accrual basls of accouniing. Revenues are recarded when eamed and
expenses are recorded al fhe lime llabllitles are incurred, regardless of when the relaled cash flows lake
place. Nonexchange Iransaclions, in whlch the Cily gives (or feceives) vaitte withou! direclly receiving {or
giving} equal value in exchange, include propeily laxes, granls, enlillements, and donalions. On an
accrital basis, revenue from properly taxes Is fecognlzed in the fiscal year for which the laxes are levied,
Rovenue from grants, enlillements, and donalions is recognized in the fiscal year In which all eligibility

recuirements have hoen salisfied,

Governmental Fund Financial Stafements: Governmenlal funds are reporied using lhe curreni financial
resources measurement focus and {he madified accrual basis of acceuniing. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The Cily considers all revenues reporled in the
governmental funds {o be avallable if ihe revenues are collected within sixly days afler year-end.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Revenues from local sources conslst primarily of propery taxes. Properly lax revenuss and revenues
recelved from the Stale are recognized under the suscepfible-to-accrual concepl. Miscellaneous revenues
are recorded as revenue when recelved in cash becausc they are generally nol measurable uniil actually
recelvad. Invesiment earnings are recordad as eamed, sice they are bolh measurable and avaliable.
Expenditures are recorded when e related fund liability is Incurred, excep! for principal and inferest on
general long-term debl, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which ‘are recognized as
sxpendilires to {he exten! {hey have malured. General capilal assel acquisillons are reported as
expenditures In governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-lerm debl and acquisilions under capital
leases are reported as olher financing sotrces.

When Lhe Cily Incurs an expendilure or expense for which both reslricted and unreslricled resources may
be used, It Is the Cily's pollcy to use restricled resources first, then unresiricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounling and Financlal Repoiting for Proprietary Funds and Olher
Governmental Enfities Thal Use Proprielary Fund Accounting,” all proprielary funds will continue o
follow Financlai Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"} standards lIssugd on or before November 30, 1989,
However, from thal dale forward, proprietary funds will have the oplion of either 1) choosing not lo apply
fulure FASB standards (including amendments of sarfier pronouncements), or 2 conlinuing o follow naw
FASB pronouncements unless they confiict wilh GASB guidance. The Cily has chosen nol o apply fulure

FASB standards,

3.  Financial Staterment Amounls

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalenls

For purposes of the stalement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered 1o be cash equivalents if they
have a malurily of three months or less when purchased.

Properly Taxes

Propeily laxes aro levied by Oclober 1 on the assessed value listed as of (he prior January 1 for all real
and business personal properly In conformily with Subllile E, Texas Properly Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not pald before Felrvary 1 of the year following the vear in
which imposed, On January 1 of each year, a tax llen allaches o properly 1o secure lhe payment of all
laxes, penallles, and interes! ullimately Imposed. Properly fax revenues are considered available
(1) when they become due or past due and recelvable within the current pericd and (2} when lhey are
expected lo be collected during a 60-day pariad after the close of the flscal year.

Allowances for uncollaclible tax recelvables within the General and Debl Service Funds are based upon
historical experience In collecling properly taxes. Uncolfectibls personal properly taxes are periodically
reviewed and wrillen off, bul the Cily Is prohlbited from writing ofl real properly laxes withoul specific
slalutory authorily from the Texas Leglslature,

invenlories and Prepald ltems

Tho Cily records purchases of supplies as  oxpendilures, ulllizing 1he purchase method of
accounting for invenlory.

Cerlaln paymenls lo vendors reflact costs applicable io lulure accouniing periods and are recorded as prepaid
jtems,

Capital Assels
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Purchased or conslricled caplilal assels are reported al cost or eslimated historical cost. Donated fixed assels
are recorded al thelr eslimaled falr value al the date of the donalion, The cosl of normal maintenance and repalrs
thal do not add lo the value of the asset or materially exiend assets' ives are nol capilalized. A capitalizalion

Ihreshold of $5,000 is used.

Caplial assels are being depreclated using the slralght-fine method over the following eslimated usefal lives:

Eslimated
Assel Class Useful Lives
infrasiruclure 60
Buildings 20-40
Improvemenils ofher {han
Buildings 20
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

Receivable and Payable Balances

The Cily believes lhai sufficlent detali of recelvable and payable balances Is provided in the financial
slatements lo avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no dlsclosure is provided
which disaggregales those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

Compensaled Absences

On retirement or dealh of cerlain employees, the Clly pays any accrued sick leave and vacalion foave in
a lump case payment to such employes or his/her estate.

Interfund Activity

interfund aclivily resulls from loans, services provided, relmbursements or lranslers between lunds. Loans are
reported as inlerfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject {o elimination upon consolidation.
Servicos provided, deemed o be al market or near market rales, are Irealed as revenues and expendilures or
expenses. Relmbursements occur when one lund incurs a cost, charges lhe appropriate benefiting fund and
reducas fis related cost as a reimbursement, Al clher Interfund transactions are treated as Iransfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Owl are nelted and presenled as a single "Transfers” lina on the governmenl-wide slatement of
acllvillas. Similarly, interfund receivables and payablas are nelted and presented as a single "Infernal Balances"
line of the government-wide stalement of net assels,

Find Balapces - Governmenlal Funds

For Ihe year ended Seplember 30, 2011, the Cily adopted GASB Stalement No. 54 "Fund Balance Reporiing
and Governimenial Fund Type Definitlons.” Fund balances are now classified as doscribed below:

Fund balances of {he governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represenis amounis thal cannot be spent because they are eilher noi in
spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid Insurance) or legally requived lo remain inlact {such as noles

receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balanco - represents amounts ihal are conslrained by exlemal parlies, consfitufional
provisions or enabling legislation.
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Commiilled Fund Balance - reprosents amounis that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a
formal acllon by the Cily's Cily Councll. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unfess
the Gily Councll removes those consiralnis by laking the same lype of formal aclon. Commilied fund
balance amounis may be used for olher purposes wilh appropriae dite process by the Clly Council.
Commitments are lypleally dons fhrough adoplion and amendment of the budgel, Commilled fund
balance amounts differ from restricled batances In thal ihe consirainls on their use do not come from
oulside pailes, constilutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the Cily Inlends {o use for a specific purpose, bul that
do not meet the criterda to be classified as resiicted or commilted. Infent may be stipulated by the City
Gouncil or by an official or body to which the Clly Councll delegates lhe authosily. Spacific amounts thal
are nol resbricled or commilted in a speclal revenue, capilal projects, debt service or permanent fund are
assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose,
Assignments within the general fund conveys thal the Intended use of those amounis Is for a specific
purpose thal Is narrower than the general purposes of lhe City Itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represenls amounts which are unconsirained in that they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the genoral fund reporis a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental
funds might reporl a negalive balance in this classification because of overspending for specific pwiposes
for which amounls had been resircted, commilted or asslgned.

When an expendilure Is Inctired for a purpose for which both reslricled and unresiricled fund balance is
avallable, the Cily considers resiricled funds o have been spent first. When an expendilure Is Incurred for
which commilled, asslgned, or unassigned fund balances are avallable, the Cily considers amounts o
have been spenl first oul of commitled funds, then assignad funds, and finally unassigned funds.

The preparation of financlal statements In conformily with GAAP requires lhe use of managemenl's estimates.

4.  Budgelary Dala

The faollowing procedures are followed In eslablishing the budgetary dala reflected In the basic financial

slatements:

a, Frior fo the bsginning of the fiscal year, the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year.
The operaling budget includes proposed expendiiures and the means of financing them.

b. A meeling of the City Councll is then called for the purpose of adopling the proposed budgel. Al loast len
days’ public nofice of the mesfing must have been given.

c. Prlor Lo ihe slart of the fiscal year, the budgel is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by Ihe
Cily Councll,

Once a budgel Is approved, Il can be amended only by approval of a majorily of the members of the City
Council. As required by law, such amendmenis are made before the facl, are reflected in fhe official minutes of
the City Councll and are nol made after fiscal year end. During the year, the budgel was amended as necessary,

Al budget approprialions lapse al year end.

The following funds have legally adopted budgots: General Fund, Ullily Surcharge Fund, HoleWMoiel
Occupancy Tax Fund, Municipal Cowrt Securily & Technology Fund, Cily/Counly Dispatch Fund and  Debl

Service Fund.

The Clly prepares alf budgets on a "GAAP" basls.
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B.

5. Encumbrance Accounling
Enctimbrance accounting is nof used by the Cily.
Compliance and Accouniability

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contraclual Provisions

In accordance wilh GASB Statement No. 38, "Certaln Financlal Stalement Nole Disclosures," violations of finance-
relalad legal and conltractual provisions, if any, are reporied below, along with actions taken o address such violations:

Viotation Action Taken
None reporied Not applicable

2. Deficll Fund Balance or Fund Nel Assels of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund bafances or fund net assels al year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficlls:

Deficit
Fund Name Amounl  Remarks
Cily Counly Dispaich $ 135,943  Temporary shortage. To be

replenished by General Fund.

Daeposits and Investiments

The Clly's funds are required to be deposiled and invested under the terms of a deposilory conlracl, The deposilory
bank deposils for safekeeping and {rust with the Cily's agent bank approved pledged securilfes In an amount sufficient
lo prolect Cily funds on a day-to-day basis during lhe period of lhe conlract. The pledge of approved securities is
waived only 1o the exlent of the deposilory bank's dollar amount of Fedaral Deposil insurance Corporation ("FDIC")

insurance.

Cash Deposlis:

At September 30, 2011, the carrying amount of the Cily's deposits {cash, cerlillcales of deposil, and inleresl-bearing
savings accounts included In lemporary Inveslmenis) was $28,170,730 and lhe bank balance was $26,245,610. The
Cily's cash deposils al Seplember 30, 2011 and during the year endsd Seplember 30, 2011, were entitely covered by
FDIC insurance or by pledyed collaleral held by the Cily's agent bank in the City's name.

Investments:

The Cily Is roquired by Government Code Chapler 2256, The Public Funds Investment Acl, lo adopl, implemenl, and
publicize an Investment policy. Thal policy must be wrillen; primarily emphasize safely of principal and liquidity;
address Invaslment diversificalion, yield, and malurity and the qualily and capabilily of investment managemenl; and
include a list of the lypes of authorized Investments In which the Invesilng enlily's funds may be invesled; and ihe

maximum alfowable slaled maturily of any individual Investiment owned by 1he enlily.

The Public Funds Inveslment Act ("Act”} requiras an annual audit of inveslmenl praclices. Audit procedures In ihis
area conducted as a parl of the audit of the general purpose fGnanclal sialements disclosed that In the areas of
Invastment praclices, management reporls and eslabfishment of appropriale policies, the Cily adhered io the
requirements of the Act. Additlonally, invesiment praclices of Lhe Gily were In accordance wilh local policies,
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The Acl deiermines the lypes of invesimenls which are allowable for the Clly. These include, with certaln restriclions,
(1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, cerlain U.S. agencles, and the Stale of Texas, (2) cedificales of deposit, (3)
certaln municipal securilles, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers accepiances,
{7) mutual funds, {8) invesiment pools, (9) guaranteed Investment contracls, and {10) commaon trust funds.

The Cily's investment at Septeinber 30, 2011 are shown below.

Invesiment or Invastiment Type Maturity al
] 18,585

TexPool NIA

Texas Term Dally NiA 66,502

Tolat Invesiments $__ 85087

During the year, lhe Clly lnvested In the following lype of invesiment which was nof held al year end:

Ceriificates of Deposit
Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks:

GASB Statement No. 40 requifes a delermination as to whelher the Cily was exposed lo the following specific
Inveslmeni risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

.

Credit Risk

Credit visk is the risk thal an issuer or olher counterparty 1o an Invesiment will nol fulfll its obligailons. The ralings of
securilies by nallonally recognized raling agencles are designed lo give an Indication of credit risk. At year end, the
City was not significantly exposed 1o credit risk.

At Seplember 30, 2011, the Clly's Jnvestmenis, ofher than lhose which are obligalions of or guaraniead by the U.
5. Government, are rated as to credil quatily as follows:

Investmenl Raling Rallng Agency
TexPool AAAM Slandard and Poor's
Texas Term AAA! Standard and Poor's

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposils are exposed o custodlal credit risk if they are nof covered by deposilory insurance and (he deposits are
uncollateratized, collaleralized with securities held by the pledging financlal institullon, or collaleralized with securities
held by lhe pledging financlal insiltullon's {rust departiment or agenl bul not In the Clly's name.

Investment secwrifles are oxposed to cuslodial eredil risk if the securities are uninsured, are nol registered in the name of
lhe governmenl, and are held by either the counlerparly or the counterparly's trust deparimeni or agan! b nol in the

Cily's name,
Al year end, {he Cily was nof exposed fo cuslodial credil risk.

Goncenlratlon of Credit Risk

This rlsk is the risk of loss allribuled to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single fssuer. At year end, the
City was not exposed lo concentration of cradit risk.
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d. inferes! Rale Rlsk

This is the risk thal changes in Interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an Investimant. Al year end, the
Clly was nol exposed {o Interest rale risk.

e.  Forelgn Currency Risk

This Is [he rlsk thal exchange rales will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the Cily was
nol exposed lo forelgn currency risk.

Invesiment Accounting Policy
The City's general policy Is to reporl money markel fnvestments and shorl-term pariicipating  interest-earning

investimen{ conlracls al amorlized cost and fo report nonpariicipating Inferesl-earning Investmenl conlracls using a
cosl-based measure. However, il the falr value of an investment Is significanlly affected by the impairment of the
credit standing of the lssuer or by other faclors, il Is reporled al fair value. Al other lavestiments are reporled at falr
value unless a legal conlracl oxists which guarantees a higher value. The ferm “short-lermy' refers lo invesimenls
which have a remalning term of one year or less al iime of purchase. The ferm "nonparficipating” means thal the
investmenl's valus does not vary with market Interest rale changes. Nonnegoliable celificales of deposit are axamples

of nonparticipating Interesl-sarning Invesiment contracls.

ublic Funds {nv ools
Public funds Investment pools in Texas {"Pools"} are eslablished under the authorily of the Interlocal Cooperalion Act,

Chapter 79 of the Texas Governmeni Code, and are subject lo the provisions of the Publlc Funds Invesiment Act {lhe "Act"),
Chapler 2266 of lhe Texas Government Code. In addilion o olher provisions of the Act designsd to promote liquidity and
safely of principal, the Act requires Pools fo: 1) have an advisory board composed of parlicipants In the pool and ofher
poersons who do not have a business relatlionship wilh the peol and are qualifled 1o advise the poel; 2) maintain a continuous
rafing of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rallng by al Jeast one nalionally recegnized raling service; and 3)
malntain the marke( value of ils underlylng invesiment portfolio within one half of one percen! of the value of its shares.

The Cliy's Investments In Pools are reported al an amount defermined by {he falr value per share of the pool's
underlying porifolio, unless the pool Is 2a7-llke, in which case ihey are reporled at share value. A 2a7-iike pool Is one
which ls not registored with the Securlies and Exchange Commisslon ("S8EC*) as an Invesimen! company, bul
neverlheless has a policy thal ft will, and does, operate In a manner consislent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the

Investment Company Acl of 1840,
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D. Racelvables

Receivables at Seplember 30, 2011 for the Cily's Individual major funds and nonmajor funds In the aggregate,

Inciuding the applicable allowances for uncolleciible accounis are as follows:

Govarnmental Acliviles
Debl Nonmajor
General Service Governmental Tolal
Propeary laxas % 136,645 § 90,456 $ -- % 227,001
Other Taxes 218,336 — 208,193 426,529
Accounls - -- 18,294 18,294
Spsaclal Assassments -- - 7,208 7,208
Intergovernmenial -- -- 105,452 105,452
Fines 75,000 -- o 76,000
Sundry 1,739 .- - 1,738
Gross 4@1 820 90,456 339,147 861,223
Less allowance for
uncolleclibles (52,847) {27,699) {4,296) {84,842)
Nel Recelvables $____ 378673 % 62,857 3 334,851 776,381
E.  Capital Assels
Capilal asset aclivity for the year ended Seplember 30, 2011, was as follows;
Beglnning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governimental activilles:
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,856,512 & 46,255 § -- % 4,902,767
Construction in progress 120,877 - 120,877
Total capilal assels nol being depreciated _ 4,877,389 46,265 - 5,023,644
Capital assets being deprecialed:
infrastivclie 10,972,329 593,128 - 11,565,457
Buildings and improvements 4,715,196 56,484 -- 4,771,680
Improvements other than buildings 977,006 123,945 -- 1,100,851
Machinery and Equipment 2,651,654 199,692 75,000 2,776,346
Total capital assets being depreclaled 19,316,185 973,249 75,000 20,214,434
L ess accumulaled depreschalion for:
infrastiuciure (592,778) {198,415) -- {791,193)
Bulldings and Improvements {6825,950) {124,945) - {950,895}
Improvemenis other than bulldings (238,722) (48,844) - (287,566)
Machinery and Equipment {1,605,563) {216,080) {75,000) {1,746,653)
Tolal accumulated depreciation _(3,263,013) {588,294) (75,000)  (3,776,307)
Tolal capital assels being deprectaled, not 16,063,172 384,955 -- 16,438,127
Governmenlal activilies capital assets, nel $ 21030561 & 431,210 § -- % 2148771
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Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Docroases Balances

Business-{ype aclivilies:

Capilal assels not belng depreciated:

Land 3 214,954 $ - $ - $ 214,954

Conslruciion In progress 122,334 688,727 22,000 789,061

Tolal capital assels not being depreciated 337288 688,727 22,000 1,004,015

Capilal assels being depreciated:

Bulldings and improvements 1,728,904 -- -- 1,728,804

improvements other than buildings 3,361,402 -- - 3,361,402

Infrastruciiure 38,073,033 1,986,907 - 40,059,940

Machinery and Equipment 3,104,018 89,376 16,815 3,176,579

Total caplial assels being depreciated 46,267,357 2,076,283 18816 48,326,825
Less accumulaled depreciation for: o T
Bulldings and improvements (1,402,947} (38,868) - {1,441,813)
improvements other than buildings (1,699,625) {88,573) -- (1,788,198}
infrasiruclure {13,420,332) {730,144} -- {14,150,476)
Machinery and Equipment {1,659,222) {119,321) (18,815) (1,761,728}

Total accumulated depraclation (18,182,126) {978,904) {18,815) = (19,142,215)
Tolal capilat assels belng depreciated, net 28,085,231 1,099,379 - 29,184,610

Business-lype activilles capilal assels, net $ 28422519 8 1,788,106 $ 22,000 §_ 30,188,625

Deprecialion was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental aclivilies:

General Governmant $ 32474

Public Safely 184,950

Public Works 268,520

Cullure and Recrealion 102,350

8 588,294

Business-type aclivilies:

Waler and Sewer Sysiem $ 787,571
Nalural Gas Syslem 61,767
Beach Park 61,442
Community Aqualic Canter 66,124
$_ 976904
Capilal Leases
{ncluded in lhe governmental aclivilias capital assels listed above are the following capilalized leased assets:
Bulldings 3 1,607,000
Lass accumulaled amoriization _ {281,225)
Capllalized leases, net 3 1,325,775
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F.

Interfund Balances and Activity
1.  Due To and From Olher Funds

Balances due o and due from olher funds al September 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose L
General Fund Olher Governmenial Funds $ 228,832  Shorl-term loans
General Fund Olher Enterprise Fund 241,831 Short-ferm loans

Tolal $__ 470663

All amounls due are scheduled lo be repald within one year.
Transfers To and From Other Funds
Transfers to and from olher funds al Seplember 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Transfors In

General Nonmajor Nonmajor Waler &

Transfers Qui Total Fund Governmental Proprietary Sewer
Nalural Gas Fund $ 271,939 $ 105,401 § $ 3 166,538
Waier and Sewer Fund 124,531 702,093
20067 C. O. Fund 152,731 - . 152,734
General Fund 1,320,308 - 685,517 834,791
Debt Service Fund -- -
Nonmajor Governimenta) 114,082 8,296 53,786 52,000
Nonmajor Proprielary 36,000 .- 36,000 --

$ 2,619,591 $ 815,790 $ 739,303 $ 722,791 $ 319,269

The General Fund received funds from 1he Water & Sewer and Nalural Gas Funds o cover allocated amounts of
adminisiralive charges.

The Beach Park Fund recleved $597,830 to cover operaling losses ovor the las! several years. Annual ransfers have
have bean budgeled, bul not made over the lasl several yoars.

Olher transfers were made lo supplemeni other funds operations.

Short-Term Debi Activily
The Gily had no short-term debt aclivily for the year anded September 30, 2011.

Restricled Assels

Cash and cash equivalents were reslricled for the following purposes at Soptember 30, 2011;

Governmenlal  Business-lype

Activitles - Activities
Bond Conslruction Funds % 8,719,014 § 7,243,232
Desblt Service -~ 184,655

7,427,887

$ 8,719,014 $
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. L.ong-Term QObligations

The Cily has enlored info a conlinving disclosure underlaking lo provide Annual Reports and Malerlal Evenl Nolices
to the State Informalion Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This Informalion Is required under
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 o enable investors to analyze ihe financial cendilion and oparations of the Cily.

Long-term debt consisled of the followlng at Seplember 30, 2011:

Combinalion Tax and Revenue Centificates of
Obligation, Serles 2005 4.00-4.50%

Combinalion Tax and Ravenue Corlificates of

Obligation, Series 2607

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009

Comblnation Tax and Revenue Cerlificates of

Obillgation, Serles 2000
General Refunding Bonds, Series 2010
Tolal Bonded Debt
Unamontized bond premium
Unamonlized Daferred Loss on Refunding
Unamertized Deferred Galn on Relunding
Capital leases payable
OPEB obligalion

Compensaled absences

Totai Long-Term Debt

Long-Term Obligation Acfivily

General Long- Enterprise
InterestRate  Term Debt Fund Debt
4,843,176 3,541,824
4.25-5.26% 13,403,295 2,756,705
3.00-4.00% 1,640,478 1,169,522
3.06-4.50% - 9,865,000
2.00-4.00% 1424776 1,420,224
21,311,725 18,853,275
358,128 229,652
(208,792) (47.332)
-- 108,526
1,180,000 -
1,018,943 -
362,803 128,001

$_ 24,012,807 3 19,272,212

Long-term obligations include debl and ofher long-term lfabiliffes. Changes In long-lerm obligatlons for the year ended

Seplembar 30, 2011, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Wilhin
Balance Decreases Balance ~_One Year

Governmental activilles:
General obfigation bonds $ 20,175,880 & 1,020,208 § 18,246,471 651,522
General obligation bonds 1,885,674 275,244 3,065,254 490,769
Bond premium 326,677 30,380 358,128 30,390
Deferred loss on refunding (19,028} (23,728} (208,792} (23,728}
Capital leases 1,247,000 67,000 1,180,000 69,000
OPEB obligation 685,441 - 1,018,943 330,000
Compensaied absences * 312,958 115,487 352,803 140,000
Total governmental aclivilies $ 24,618,302 § 2,393,602 & 24012,807 $ 1,687,053
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Business-{ype aclivities:

Gerlificales of obligation % 18,634,321 & - 3 2,370,792 § 16,263,529 658,478

General obligalion bonds 1,344,326 1,450,176 204,758 2,689,746 380,855

Bond premium 187,854 81,743 19,045 229,652 19,945

Deferred loss on refunding {64,012} (6,680) (47,332) (6,680}
120,686 12,058 108,528 12,059

Deferred gain on refunding -
Compensated absences * 97,714 100,784 70,407 128,081 100,000

Total business-lype aclivites $ 20,210,203 $ 1,733,288 % 2,671,279 & 19,272,212 § 1,164,657

* Other long-lerm liabilities
The funds lypically used to liquidale olher long-term labiillies In the past are as follows:

Liabilily Aclivity Type Fund
Compensaled absences Governmanlal
Cilaims and judgments Governmental
Compensaled absences Business-type
Clalms and judgments Buslness-lype

2. Debt Service Requirements

Dabt service requirements on long-term debt al Seplember 30, 2011, are as follows:

Governmenlal Activities

Year Ending Seplember 30, Principal inferest Total

2012 $ 1,025,667 $ 935,996 $ 1,961,663
2013 1,089,919 897,287 1,987,206
2014 1,133,084 855,860 1,988,944
2015 1,182,055 812,386 1,094,441
2018 1,383,731 763,104 2,146,835
2017-2021 6,901,392 2,851,373 0,852,765
2022-2026 7,336,319 1,260,614 8,629,933
2027 1,256,558 32,984 1,289,542
Tolals $  21311,728 % 8,639,604 ¢ 29,851,329

Business-lype Aclivilles

Year Ending Seplember 30, Princlpal interssl Tolal

2012 $ 959,333 § 738,762 § 1,698,095
2013 1,000,081 707,371 1,707,452
2014 1,031,816 674,129 1,706,045
2015 1,072,945 639,359 1,712,304
2018 1,111,269 602,642 1,713,911
20i7-2021 5,588,608 2,357,942 7,946,550
2022-2026 5,635,681 1,191,471 6,827,152
2027-2028 . 2,453.442 165,805 2,600,247
Tolals $ 18,863,275 § 7,067,481 $ 25 920,766

3. Advance Refunding of Debl

In December, 2010, the Cily lssusd $2,905,000 of General Obligallon Refunding Bonds lo provide resources io
advance refund $1,261,728 of Governemenial Bonds and $1,618,210 of Business-lype Bonds, with interest rales
from 3.50 - 4.70% Inlerest on the refunding bonds [s 2.00-4.00%. The Clly used ihe net proceeds along wilh
other resources to purchase U.S. govermnmeni securities which were placed in an lrrevocabls trust fo provide for
all future debt service on lhe refunded bonds, As a resull, these bonds are considered defeased and the Cily has
removed the liabllily for these bonds from ils books. The oulstanding principal of the defeased bonds is

$2,815,048 at September 30, 2011.

38



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

The advance refunding reduced lotal debt service payments over the next 10 years by approximalely $205,999.
This results is an economic gain{differance beiween lhe present values of the debt service paymenis on the old

and now debt) of approximately $177,155.
There was no outstanding refunded debt al Seplember 30, 2011.

4 Capllal Leases

Commilinents under capilalized lease agresments for facflities and equipment provide for minimum fulure leass paymenis
as of Seplember 30, 2011, as follows:

Year £nding Seplember 30;

2012 $ 120,820
2013 121,137
2014 120,222
2015 120,162
2016 120,911
2017-2021 603,203
20222028 362,181
Total Minlmum Renials 1,668,636
Less amount representing inleres! {388,636)
Praseni value of minimum lease paymenls ) $ 1,180,000
Rental Expendilures in 2014 $ 120,303

The effeclive interest rate on capital leases is 4.39%.

5 Ceonlinuing Disclosure

The Cily has enlered inlo a continuing disclosure underlaking to provide Annual Reports and Malerfal Event
Nolices to the Slate Informalion Deposliory of Texas, which Is the Municipal Advisory Council, This Informalion
is required under SEC Rule 15¢2-12 {o enable inveslors lo analyze the financial condition and operalions of lhe

Cily.

Commitmenls Under Noncapilalized ! easas

The City had no material corimitmenls under oparaling {noncapilatized) loase agreements al Seplamber 30, 2011,

K. Risk Managemenl

The Cily Is exposed lo various risks of loss refated lo lofis, ihefl, damage or destnuction of assels, errors and omissions,
injuries to employees, and nalural disasiers. During fiscal year 2011, the Clly obtalned general labllily coverage al a
cost lihal Is considared to be economically jusiifiable by joining logether wilh olher governmental entilles in the State
as a member of the Texas Municlpal League Inlergovernmenlal Risk Pool ("TML"Y). TML is a self-funded peol
operaflng as a common risk managoment and Inswrance program. The Cily pays an annual premivm fo TML for ils
above insurance coverage. Tho agreement for the formation of TML provides thal TML will be seif-sustaining through
membar premiums and will relnsure lhrough commercial ¢companies for clalins in excess of acceplable risk levels:
however, each calegory of coverage has ils own level of refnsurance. The CiHly conlinues fo carry commercial
insurance for other risks of loss. There were no significant reduclions In commercial insurance coverage in the pasi
fiscal yoar and sellled claims resulling from lhese risks have nol exceeded coverage In any of the past lhree fiscal

years.
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L. Pension Pla

1.

Plan Descripllon

The Cily's pension plan ("Plan") is a non-iradilional, joint contribuiory, defined benefit plan which provides
refirament, disabliily and dealb beneflls o Plan members and beneficiaries through ifs affilfalion with Texas
Municipal Relirement Systemy ("TMRS"), an agent mulliple-employer public employee refirement system.
TMRS operates under the authorily of Texas Government Code, Tile 8, Sublile G. The Texas legislalure has
the authorily to eslablish or amend benefit provisions and the governing body of ihe Cily adopls the plan
provisions wilhin the oplions and constrainls established by lho legislalure. TMRS issues a publicly available
financial reporl (hal includes financial siatemenis and required supplementary Informalfon for TMRS. That
report may be oblained by wiiling to Texas Municipal Reliremeni System, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX
78714-9153 or calllng (800) 824-8677. Addilional nonauthoritalive Information Is available al the TMRS web

site, hitp:envawr tmrs.org.

The plan provisions are adopled by the governing body of tha Cily, within the options available in the state governing
TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as foilows:

Plan Year Plan Year
010 o201
Employee deposil rate 7.00% 7.00%
Matching rallo(cily lo empioyes) 2i{01 2t01
Years required for vesting 10 10
Seivice relirement eligibifity
express as agefyears of service 60/10,0/20 60/10,0/20
Updaled Service Credil 100% Repealing 100% Repealing
Transfers Translers
Annuity Increase (lo employees) 70% of CPl Repeating 70% of CPl Repealing

Conlributions

Under the siate law governing TMRS, the coniribullon rale for each cily is delermined annually by the acluary,

using the Projecled Unit Credil acluarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost coniribution rale
and the prlor sepvice cost conlribulion rale, which Is calculated to be a level percenl of payroll from year lo year.
The normal cost contribution rate finances the porllon of an active members projecled benecfil allocated
annually; the prior service contribullon rale amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarlal flability {asset} over the
applicable period for that city. Bolh the normal costs and prior service contribulion rales include recognilion
of the projected Impacl of annually repealing benefits, such as Updaled Service Credits and Annuily Increases.

The Cily confribules to the TMRS Plan al an acluarially delermined rale. Bolh lhe employees and the Cily
make  conirlbulions monthly.  Since the Cily needs to know s conlribulion rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, lhere is a one-year delay belween the acluarial valualion thal serves as the basls for the rate and the
calendar year when the rale goes into effect. The annual pension cost and ne{ penslon obligation{assel) are as

follows:
Mel Pension Obligation (NPO) at Begiming of Year $ -

Annual Pension Cosi:
Annual required contribuiion (ARC) $ 668,220

Contributions Made
NPO al End of Year -

< 40
[«1]
13
N
|=
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The requlred conliibutlon raies for fiscal year 2011 were delermined as part of iha December 31, 2008 and 2000
actuarial vaiuafions. Addillenal informalion as of the latest acluarlal valuation, December 31, 2010, also follows:

Aculuarial Valualion Date

Acluarial Cost Method

Amortizallon Melhod

Remaining Amorlization Period

Amorlization Period for new

Gains/l.osses

Asset Valuallon Method

Investment Rale of Relumn

Projected Salary increasos

infation Rate

Cosl of Living Adjustments

3 Funding Stalus and Funding Progress:
a resiructure of the TMRS funds.

mesling.

12731708

12131/09

12/31110
prios to
restiuciuring

12131110
Resiruclured

Projected Unil
Gredit

Level Percent
of Payroli

29 years:
closad perlod
30 years

Amontized Cosl

7.5%

Varlas by age
and service

3.0%

2.1%

Projecled Unit
Credit

t evel Percenl
of Payiolt

28.1 years:
closed period
30 years
10-year
Simoothed
Market
7.5%

Varles by age
and service

3.0%

214%

including the effeclts on TMRS clly rales and funding ratios,

Annual Financial Repori.

Projected Unit
Credit

l.evel Percent
of Payroll

27.2 years:
closad pariod
30 years
10-year
Smoothed
Market
7.5%

Varies by age
and service

3.0%

2.1%

Projected Unil
Credit

Level Percent
of Payroll

27.3 years:
closed period
30 years
10-year
Smoolhad
Markel
7.0%

Varies by age
and service

3.0%

2.1%

In Juns, 2011, SB 360 was enacled by lhe Texas Legistalure, resulling in
This legislation provided for the acluarial valualion to be completed, as if
resiructuring had cccurred on December 31, 2010. In addilion, the acluarial assumption were updaled for the new
fund struclure, based on an actuarial experlence sludy that was adoplad by the TMRS Board at their May, 20114

For & complele descriplion of the combined Impact of the legislation and new actuarlal assumptions,

please sea lhe December 31, 2010 Comprehensive

The funding slaius as of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarlal valuation date, Is as follows:

Acluarial Valuatlon Date
Actuarial Value of Assels
Actuarlal Accried Liability

Percentage Funded

Unfunded {Over-funded) Acluarial Accruad

Liabilily (UAAL)

41

$

$

Crigninal Newr
Fund Fund
Siruclure Shructure
12131710 12/31H0
10,346,760 % 14,763,503
15,061,178 § 18,263,261
68.7% 80.8%
4,704,418 $ 3,499,758
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Anntal Covered Payroll $ 4,372,266 $ 4,372,266

UAAL as a Percenlage of Covered Payrolt 107.6% 80.0%
~ Trend Informalion for he Plan
Fiscal Annual Percentage Nel
Year Pension of APC Penslon
Ending Cost {APC) Contribuled Obligation
06/30/09 $ 566,212 100.00% 3% --
09/20/10 625,336 100.00% --
D930/ 668,220 100.00% -
Schedule of Funding Progress:
UAAL as a
Acluariai  Acluarial Actuarial Unlunded Annual Percantage
Vajue Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Cavered
Date Assels Liability(AAL) {UAAL) Rallo Payroll Payroll
1213108 8,752,103 & 12,928,424 & 4,174,321 67.71% $ 3,861,196 108.1%
12131/08 9,739,357 14,186,937 4,457,580 68.60% 4,043,337 110.2%
{1) 12131110 10,346,760 15,051,178 4,704,418 68.74% 4,372,266 107.6%
{2) 1213110 14,763,503 18,263,261 3,499,758 80.84% 4,372,266 80.0%

(1) Actuartal valuation perforined under the orfginal fund slructure.
(2)  Acluarlal valualion performed under the new fund struciure.

The Cily also paiticipates in the cost sharing mulliple-employer defined bensfil group-lerm fife insurance plan
operated by ihe Texas Municipat Relirement Syslem (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Dealh Benefils Fund
(S8DBF)., The City elecled, by ordinance fo provlde group-lerm life insurance coverage to both current and
retired employees. The Cily may lerminale coverage under and disconlinue parliclpation In the SDBF by
adepling an ordinance before November 1 of any year {0 be effeclive the following January 1.

Heallh Care Coverage

During the year ended September 30, 2011, employees of the City were covered by a heallh Insurance plan (the
Plan). The Cily pald premiums of $413 per month per employso and dependents lo the Plan. Employees, at their
optien, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependenis. Al premlums were patd to a third parly
adiministrator, aciing on behalf of the licensed Insurer. The Plan was authorized by Arlicle 3.61-2, Texas insurance

Code and was dosumented by confraciual agreement.

The conlract belween the Cily and the ihird parly adminisiralor is renewable Oclober 1, 2012, and lerms of coverage
and premium cosis are Included In the contractual provisions.

Lates! financial slatements for the are available for the year ended , have been filed with the Texas State Board of
Insurance, Auslin, Texas, and are public records.

Pos! Employment Benefils Gther Than Penslons

Heallly Care Benalil Eligibilily Condilions:

Before 472472001 - Retirement from Clly, employee eligible for health insurance, Cily pays 100% of premium,

42



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

After 4/24/2001 - Retlrement wilh ten years of service wilh the City of Rockport a reliree is eligible for 50% of the
pramium. The percenlage of premium paid [ncreases annually and al hwenly years of service eligible for 100% of
praimium. I reliting alter Aprll 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirly days of refirement.

At age 86 must apply for Medicare and Cily furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy

Health Care Benalil Provided by the Plan
Member: Madical
Spouse: NIA
Dependerr  NIA

Eary Retlremeni Benefils
Health Care Benefil Eligibility Condilions

Before 4/24/2001: Rslirement from Cily, employee ellgible for health instirance, Cily pays 100% of premium.

After 4724/2001; Rellrement wilh ten year of service with lhe Cily of Rockport eligible for 50% of premlum. The
percentage of premium paid Increasos annually and at bwenly years of service ellgible for 100% of premivm. If
reliing after Aprit 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirly days of (heir relirement. At age 65 must

appiy for Medicare and Clly furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Pollcy.

Heallh Care Be Pla

Member: Medical
Spouse: NIA
Dependery  N/A

Defsrred Relirement Benefits

Nons.

Buly and Non-Duly Deall In Service Reiirement Benefils
None.

Duly Disabled Reliramant Benefils

Health Care Benelfil Eligibility Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Retlrement from Cily employee eligible for health insurance, Gity pays 100% of premium.

Adter 4/24/200%; Rellrament with ten year of service with the Clly of Rockporl elfigible for 50% of premium. The
parcentage of premium pald Increases annually and at twenly years of service ellglbls for 100% of premium. If
refliring after April 24, 2001, they musi snroll for this coverage within thirly days of thelr reliremeni. Al age 85, lhe

retiree must apply for Medicare and Gily furnishes a Medicare Supplemantal Pollcy,

Health Care Benefit Provided by Plan
Member:  Medical

Non-Dufy Disabled Relirement Benefils

Health Care Benefit Eligibliity Condilions

Before 4/24/2001; Retirement from Clly employee eligible for heaith insurance, Cily pays 100% of premium.

Afler 4/2472001: Relirement with len year of service with the City of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium, The
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porcentage of premium paid increases annually and at twonly years of service relirees are aligible for 100% of
premium. f reliring afler April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirty days. At age 65 must apply

for Medicare and Clly furnishes a Medfcare Supplemental Pollcy.

Health Care Bensfil Provided by Plan

Member: Medlcal

Benefils for Spouses of Relired Employees
Benefils are paid by Ihe retiree
Nop-Medicare and Medlgaro-Eligible Provisions

At age 65 must apply for Medlcare and Cily furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

Vision Coverage
Health Gare Benefil Eilgibiilty Condilions

Beneflts are paid by reliree

Hezllh Care Benefit Peovided by Plan

Member: No
Dontal Coverage
Heallh Care Benefit Eligibllily Conditions
Benefits are paid by relires

Heatth Care Benefit Provided by Flan
Member:  No

Life Insurance Coverage

The Cily of Rockport provides $2,000 basic life insurance for retirees.
No dependent life Is covered by the Cily of Rockport.
Reliree Opt-Out

N/A
Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cosl

The Cily's annual other post employmenl benefils {OPEB) cos! is calculated based on the annual required
conliibution of the employer (ARC), an amount acluardally delermined in accordance with the parameler of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represenls a level of accrual that Is profected to recognize the normal cos! each year
and lo amorllze any unfunded acluarial llabilities {or funding excess) over a perlod not lo oxceed thidy years. The
Cily had ils firs! OPEB aclvarlal valuation performed for the fiscal year beginning Oclober 1, 2008 as required by
GASB and Is required lo have addlional valuations every three years. The annual OPEB cosl for Ihe fiscal yoar

ending September 30, 2011 was determined as follows:
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Annual required coniribulion $468,876
Interast on OPEB obligation 13,269
Adjusiment {0 ARC {13,259)
Annual OPEB cosl {expense end of year) $468,876
Net employer conlributions {pay as you go) {139,374)
Increase in net OPEB $329,502
Nel OPEB obllgation - as 09/30/10 686,441
Nel OPEB obligation {assel)- as of 09/30/11 $1,015,943

The end of year nel OPEB obligallon Is shown as a non-cuirrent liabilily on the Government-wide Slatemeni
of Nel Asssls in the Governmental Govarnmenlal Activilles,

The Cily's annual OPEB cost, Ihe percentage of annual OPEB cost conirlbuted to the plan, and net CPEB abigalion for the curn
and two precoeding years were as follows:

Percentage

of OPEB Net
Year Ended Annual OPEB Cosl OPEB
September 30 Cosl _ Contribuled  Obligatlen
2009 $ 441,861 26.51% ¢ 324,796
2010 455,220 20.56% 686,441
2011 468,876 29.73% 1,015,943

Funding status and funding progress

The {unded stalus of the Clty's reliree health care plan, under GASB stalement No. 45 as of December 31, 2008,
it's mosi recenl acluarial valualion is as follows:

Actuarlal acerued liabllity (AAL) $ 4,968,631
Acluarial value of assels --
Unfunded AALUAAL) $ 4,868,631
Funded ratio --
Covered Payroll g 4,372,266
YUAAL as % of covered payroll 113.64%

Under the reporling paramsters, the City's relireo health care plan is 0% funded with an estimated acluarial
accrued liability exceading acluarial assets by $4,608,631 al December 31, 2009.

Acluarial methods and assumplions

The Projected Unil crodit acluarial cost method Is used lo calculate the GASB ARG for the Cily's refiree health care
plan.  Using the pian bensiits, ihe present health premitms and a sel of actuarial assumplions, the anlicipaled lulure
payment are projecled. The projecled unil credit method then provides for a systamalic recognition of the cosi of
these anliclpated payments. The yearly ARC Is compulad lo cover the cosl of benefils belng earned by covered
members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued fiability.

Projecllions of health bonefits are based on the plan as underslood by the City and include the types of benefits in
foice al the valuallon dale and the pallern of sharing benefit costs belween the City and ils employees to Ihat
point.  Acluarial  calculations reflecl a long-tarm  perspeclive  and employ methods  and  assumptions
~thal are designed lo reduce shorf-lerm volalilly In acluarlal accrued liabilifes and the acluarial value of assels,
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P.

Significant melhods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarlal Melhods and Assumptlons

Inwestment rate of relurn 4.6% net of exponses

Acluarial cost method Projected Unit Credil Cost Mathod
Amotlizalion method Lavel as a percentage of payroll

Growth Rale 3.0% per annum

Medicat Inflation 10% In the shori-term 1o 5% fn the leng-lerm

Actuarial valuations Involve estimales of the value of reported amounts and assumptions aboul the probability of
avenls in the future. Amounts delermined regarding the funded stalus and lhe annuai required contebulions of the
Cily's reliree health care plan are subjecl fo conlinual revision as acluat results are compared lo pasl expectalons and
new estimales are made aboul lhe fulure. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required
suplementary [nformation provides multiyear trend Informatlon hal shows whether the acluarial value of plan assels
Is Increasing or decreasing over time relative lo the acluarial accruad liabilily for benefils,

Commitiments and Contingencies

1. Conlingencles

The Cily participates In grant programs which are governed by varous sules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Cosls charged lo the respective grant pregrams are subject fo audit and adjusiment by the grantor

agencles; therefore, to (he exlent thal lhe Cily has nol complied with ihe rules and fegulalions governing the

grants, refunds of any monsey recelved may be required and the collectibilily of any related receivable may be
impalred. In the opinlon of the Cily, there are no significant coniingent labllities relating to compliance with
the ruies and regulallons governing the respeclive grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financlal statements for such conlingencies,

2. Litigation

No reporlable llligalion was pending agains! the Clly at September 30,2011,

Prlor Perfod Adfuslment

A prior period adjustment was made to remove a contingent liability in the sanltalion fund. The llabillly was ¢created
over a perlod of years under the ferms of a previous contract and is no lenger applicable. The ratained earings was

Increased $148,857.

Subsequeni Evenis

The Clty entered Into a loase agreemen! wilh the Aransas Counly Navigation District No. 1 {ACND) in 1987 lo operale
A Beach Park, The Ciy also construcled alf Improvements and purchased all equipment at the Park since lhe leases'
incepion.  The lease agreement oxpires May 1, 2012,  The Clly and the AGND were unzble to negolale a renewal
of the lease. Al the time of this reporls Issuance, the ACND has slaled thal Ihey intend lo take over all oporalions of

the Park on May 1, 2012,

The City Intends to eilher sell the equipment lo the ACND or ramove i and place it af olher parks. The bulldings and
improvements pald for by the Cily will remain al the Park. Al September 30, 2011, the nel properly and equipment
of the Park were carried on {he books at $533,307.  If the fease is nol renewed the City will tncurr a loss of close 1o

that amount on May 1, 2012,

The Park has operaled al a loss every year since ils Inception and has been supplemented by fransfers from lhe
General Fund, The City anlicipates ne adverse effecls fo its financial position due fo Ihls silualion other that the loss
incurred on abandonment of the buildings and improvernents referced 1o above.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Revenuae:
Taxes
Licenses and psrmils
Inlergovernmeniat
Charges for services
Fines
Inlerest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expendilures:
Current:

General government

Public safely

Public works

Culture and recreatlon
Capilal oullay

Total expendilures

Excess (deficioncy) of revenues (under} expendilures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sourcas (uses)
Net change In fund halance

Fund balance, beginnlng of year
Fund balance, end of year

EXHIBIT 8-1

Variance wilh

$

(GAAP Basis) Final Budgat
Budgatad Amounis Positive
Original Flnal Aclual {Negalive)
4,676,872 $ 4876872 3 4643440 3§ (33,432}
140,000 163,700 177,694 23,894
80,000 80,000 - {80,000)
13,600 1,000 948 {52)
341,400 341,400 309,625 (31,775)
45,000 45,000 10,277 (34,723)
20,238 22,238 60,823 38,585
5,317,010 5,320,210 5,202,807 (117,403)
1,306,555 1,202,014 1,266,386 (84,372}
2,397,973 2,397,973 2,217,983 180,010
1,512,421 1,612,421 1,313,368 199,055
121,408 421,408 578,111 {166,702)
331,410 331,410 183,502 147,908
5,060,768 5,865,227 5,669,328 305,899
{652,758) (545,017) (356,521) 188,496
829,313 825,213 851,790 26,877
(486,246) (579,286) {1,320,308) (741,022)
343,067 245,927 {468,618) 714,445
{309,691} (299,090} (825,039) {(525,849)
4,416,070 4,416,070 4,416,070 -
4,118,980 $ 4,116,980 $ 3,591,031 $ (525,949}
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Recelvables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Cther laxes

Accounts

Special assessments

Intergovernmental
Tolal Assels

Liabilittes:

Accounls payable

Accrued expendliures

Due o other funds

Defarred revenue
Total Liabilitles

Fund balances:
Restricied
Commitled
Asslgned
Tolal fund batances

Total Liabllitios and Fund balances

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capilal Governmenlal
Revente Projecls Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhlbit A-3)

& 389,790 5 364,752 8 744,642
208,193 - 208,193

13,950 48 13,068

735 6,473 7,208

105,452 - 105,452
$ 718,120 $ 361,273 § 1,079,393
$ 147,780 $ -- 3 147,780

6,711 -- 6,711

228,832 - 228,832

14,685 6,473 21,158

398,008 6,473 404,481
456,055 19,357 475,412
{135,043) 1,773 {134,170}

- 333,670 333,670

320,112 354,800 674,912

$ 718,120 $ 361,273 $ 1.078,393
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

EXHIBIT C-2

Tolal
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmentat
Revente Projects Funds (See
__ Funds Funds Exhibit A-5)
Revenue:
Taxos $ 828,154 -- 3 828,164
Intergoveramental 575,842 78,300 655,242
Fines 19,942 - 10,942
Interest -- 622 622
Miscellaneous 9,384 100 9,484
Totai revenues 1,433,422 80,022 1,613,444
Expanditures;
Current:
General government 7,847 206 8,063
Public safely 1,018,702 -- 1,016,702
Public works 7,952 -- 7,952
Cuilure and recreation 53,786 -- £3,786
Teurism 476,810 - 476,810
Capilal outlay -- 256,176 256,178
Debl service:
Principal 28,038 - 28,938
Inferest and fiscal charges 6,652 -- 6,652
Tolal expendiures 1,698,687 266,382 1,855,060
Excass (deficiency) of revenues (under) expendilures {165,265) (176,360) {341,625)
Cther financing sources (Uses):
Transfers In 208,934 393,408 682,342
Transfers oul (80,296) -- (60,296)
Tolat other financing sources (uses) 238,638 303,408 632,046
Nei change in fund balance 73,373 217,048 290,421
Fund balance, beginnlng of year 246,739 137,752 384,491
Fund balance, end of year $ 320,112 354,800 $ 674,912
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ABSETS

Assels:
Cash and cash equivalenis

Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Olher taxes

Accounts

Special assessmentis

intergovernmental
Tolal Assels

Liabililies:

Accounis payabio

Accrued expendliures

Due {o olher funds

Deferred revenuie
Totaf Liabililfes

Fund balances:
Reslricled
Commitied
Total fund balances

Tolal Liabilities and Fund balances

Utility Bay Juvenife
Bill Stonegarden Educallon Case
Surcharge Granl Cenler Manager
$ 131,156 $ - $ 1381 $ 989
13,950 -- - —
e 55,644 L - N --
3 145,106 $ 55,644 3 1361 $ —  o@g
3 i22,041 8 -~ $ 1,391 -
. 55,644 - -
13,950 - - _
135,901 55,644 i, -
8,118 e -- 989
9,115 . -- -- 989
$ 145,106 $ 55,644 3 1,391 . 988
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EXHIBIT C-3

Page 1 of 2
Clly/Counly Public Key Allegro
Contribution Dispatch Access Hotelivtote! Property Impr.
Fund Sevice v Occlipancy Dislifcl
30 5 - $ 54,999 $ 82,639 $ 232
- - - 208,193 --

- - - - 735
%0 s 2 200852 LA T
- $ 5,852 $ - $ - 5 -

- 6,711 - - -
- 144,484 -- - -
S - - - .. - - - 735
- _ 157,047 . S R Y 1
30 - 54,909 290,832 232
- (135943 o -— e
30 . {135,943) 54,999 290,832 232
30 $ 21,104 $ 54,990 $ 290,832 $ 967

51



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS

Assels:
Cash and cash equivalenis
Receivablos ( ne! of allowances for uncollectibles):
Olher laxes
Accounis
Special assessments
Inergovernmental
Tolal Assals

Liabllities:

Accounis payable

Accrued expendilures

Due o olher funds

Deferred revenus
Total Liabililles

Fund balances:
Restricted
Commilled
Tolal fund balances

Totat Liabllitles and Fund balances

52

Border
Siar

] Gran{

$ 28,704

Child
Safely

19




__ Forfellure

$ 18,377
18,377

15,191
15,191

] 33,668

Mutnicipal Counl

Securily &
_Yech. Fund
$ 84,867
$ 84667
$ -
84,867

84667

$____ 84867
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EXHIBIT C-3
Pago 2 of 2

Tolal
Nonmajor
Speclal
Revenue
Funds (See
__ Exhibit C-1)

$ 389,750

208,193
13,950
735
105,452

1820

$ 147,780

$

8,711

228,832
4
590,008

456,055
_(135,943)
320,112

718,120




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Ulitity Bay Juvenile
Bilt Slonegarden Educallon Case
Surcharge Grani Center Manager
Revenue: o
Taxes $ 174,675 % - $ - -
intergovernmentat - 143,751 -- --
Fines - - -- 5812
Miscellaneous -- - - --
Total ravenues 174,675 143,751 = 5812
Expenditures:
Current;
Gensral government -- -- -- 7,022
Public safely 122,041 143,761 -- -
Public works -- - - -
Culure and recreation - - 83,786 --
Taurism -- - - -~
Debt service:
Principal 28,938 -- - -
Inlerest and fiscal charges 6,652 - - —
Tolal expenditures 167,631 143,751 53,786 7,022
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expendilures 16,944 - (53,786} {1,210)
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in - - 53,788 1,210
Transfers out {8,296) -- -- --
Tolat other financing sources {uses} (8,298) - 53,786 1,210
Net change in {fund balance 8,648 - - --
Fund balance, beginning of year 467 -- - 989
Fund balance, end of year $ 9116 $ -- $ — 989
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Contribullon
Fund

Cily/County
Dispalch

Servico

313,779

626,738

62788

(311,959)

243,938

X5 ]
{68,021)

(67,922)
$ (135,943)

’ 313,779

Public
Access
™

$ 6,301

8,301

6,301

48,898
S____o45%

55

HoteliMotel

QOceupancy

$

$

647,218

647,278

476,810

476,810

170,468

-(52,000)

T (.00

118,468

172,364

290,832

EXHIBIT C-4
Page 1 of 2

Key Allegro
Properly impr.
District



CIiTY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Revenile;
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines
Miscellaneous
Tolal revenues

Expendilures;
Currenl:
General government
Public safely
Publle works
Culture and recreation
Tourisin
Debt service:
Principal
Interesl and fiscal charges
Totai expendilures

Excess {deficlency) of revenues {under) expenditures

Ctlher flnancing sonrces (uses):
Transfets in
Transfers out
Total olher financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, and of year

Border
Star
Granl

118,412

84tz

118,412

Child
___ Safely

$ .

1,397

1,397

1,397

1,397



$

Forfeilure

(3,369)

18,580
15,191

Municipal Court
Secwrily &

Teeh, Fund

3 -

$

825

EXHIBIT C-4
Page 2 of 2

Tolal
Nonmajor
Special
Revenug
Funds {See

Exhiblt C-2)

828,154
675,942
19,542
9,384

1433422

7.847
1,016,702
7,952
53,786
476,810

28,938
8,652

1598887

(165,265)
298,934

{60,256)

_ 246,759
320,1 12



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
UTILITY BILL SURCHARGE

SPECHAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

EXHIBIT G-5

Variance with

(GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeled Amounis Positlve
Orlginat Final Aclual {Negalive)
Revenue;
Taxes $ 167,490 3 167,490 § 174,575 % 7,085
Tolal ravenues 167,480 167,490 174,575 7,085
Expenditures:
Currenk:
Pubilc safely 123,525 123,625 122,041 1,484
Debt service:
Principal . 28,938 28,938 28,938 -
Interest and fiscal charges 6,652 6,652 6,652 -
Total expendilures 159,115 169,115 167,631 1,484
Excess (deficlency) of revenues {under) expendilures 8,375 8,375 16,944 8,589
Other Mnancing sources (Uses):
Transfers oui {8,375) {8,375) (8,206) 79
Total other financing sources {uses) {8,375) {8,375) {8,296) {79
Net change In fund balance - - 8,648 8,648
Fund balance, beginning of year 467 467 467 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 67 $ 487 % 8116 & 8,648




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
CITY/COUNTY DISPATCH SERVIGE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

EXHIBIT C-6

Variance with

{GAAP Basls} Final Budgel
Budgelad Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negalive)
Revenue;

Intergovernmental 3 302,231 3% 302231 % 313,772 § 11,548

Tolal revenues 302,231 302,231 313,779 11,548
Expendiures:
Current:

Public safety 544,205 544,205 625,738 (81,633)
Tolal expenditures 544,205 544,205 625,738 {81,533)
Excoss (deficiency) of revenues (under) expendilures {241,874) (241,974} {311,950} (69,985)

Clher financing sources {uses):

Transfers in 241,974 241,974 243,938 1,964

Tolal other financing sources {uses} 241,974 241,974 243,938 {1,9864)
MNat change in fund balance - -- {68,021} (68,021)
Fund balance, beglinning of year {67,922) (67,922) {67,822) -

Fund balance, end of year $ (67,922) % (67,922} $ (135,943 $ {68,021)
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Revenue:
Taxes
Total revenues

Expendilures:
Current:
Tourism
Total expendilures

Excess {deficiency} of feventes {under) expendilures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers out
Tolal other financing sources (uses)

Nel ehange in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

EXHIBIT C-7

Variance with

{GAAP Basis} Final Budgel
Budgeted Amounts Positive
{Negalive)

Orlgingl

§ 520,000
520,000

481,050

(62,000)
__ (52,000)

(13,050}

172,384

$ 159,314

—_— =

60

Final _ Aclual

$ 520000 $ 647,278 §_ 127,278

520,000 47,218 127,278
481,060 476,810 4,240
481,050 476,810 4240
38,950 170,468 131,518
{52000y _ _ {62000) -
T (s2p00) __ (52000) -~
(13,050} 118,468 131,518
172,364 172,364 -

s 15hfd §__ 20082 §___10168



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY & TECHNOLOGY FUND
SPEGIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Revenue:
Fines

Tolal revenues

Expendiures:
Current:

General government
Tolal expendllures

Excess fdeficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Total other financing sources (uses)

Nel change In fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balanca, end of year

EXHIBIT -8

Variance with

(GAAP Basls) Final Budget
Budgeled Amounts Posliive
Original Final Actual _ {Negalive)

16,000 $ 16,000 § 12,141 % {3,859)
16,000 16,000 12,141 (3,859}

1,200 1,200 825 375

1,200 1,200 825 375
14,800 14,800 11,316 {3.484)
14,800 14,800 11,316 {3,484)
73,351 73,351 73,351 --
88,151 $ 88151 $ 84,667 $____(3484)
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

EXHIBIT G-9

Variance with

{GAAP Basls) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Posilive
Original Final Aclual {Negalive)
Revenue:
Taxes $ 1,988,237 $ 1,988,237 $ 1,969,101 $ (16,138)
Interes! 1,000 1,000 840 {160}
Total revenues 1,989,237 1,989,237 1,969,941 {19,296}
E£xpendiires;
Current:
Debi sorvice:
Principal 915,731 915,731 978,736 (63,0056}
Interest and fiscal charges 1,040,589 1,040,589 970,698 69,801
Bond Issuance cost 2,000 2,000 41,545 (39,545}
Tolal expenditures 1,958,320 1,958,320 1,980,979 {32,659)
Excess {deficlency) of revenuas (under) expandilures 30,917 30,917 {21,038} {51,955}
Olhor financing souices (uses):
Transfers in -- - 22,438 22,438
tssuance of cerlificales of obligalion - - 1,454,824 {1,454,824)
Pramium on bonds sold - -- 61,042 (61,942
Inferesl on bonds sold - -- 7,935 {7,935)
Payment fo refunding escrow agent e - (1,475,220) {1,475,220}
Tolal other financing sources (uses} - -~ 71,919 {71,919)
Nel change in fund balance 30,917 30,917 50,881 19,964
Fund batance, beginning of year 293,651 283,651 293,651 --
Fund balance, end of year $ 324568 $ 3746688 % 344,532 % 16,064
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalenls

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Accounts
Speclal assessments
Total Assels

Liabilities:
Delerred revenue
Tolal Liablities

Fund balances.
Restlcled
Committed
Assigned
Toial fund batances

Tolal Liabililles and Fund balances

63

Flamingo/ General
Luau Road Capital
Assessment Improvement
1,725 $ 28,199
48 -
_ 3918 o 2862
5,684 $ 30,761
- 3,91 % 2,562
3 o 2,562
1,773 --
28,199

1,713 T 28,199

5,684 $ 30,761



Bay Education

Cenler
Conslruction
$ 19,357
$ 19,357
$m_ -
19,357
19,357
3 19,357

Vehicle and
Equipment
_Replacement

3 305,411

3 305471

305,471
305,471

$__ 306471
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EXHIBIT C-10

Tolal
Nonmajor
Capitat
Projecis
Funds {See
Exhibit C-1)

354,762

48
6,473

51275

$

361,273

6,473

T eans

19,367
1,773
333,670

354800



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Flamingo/ General
Luau Road Capital
Assessment improvement
Revenue! —_— —
Intorgovernmental 3 -- 5 -
inferes! -- -
Miscellaneots -- -
Tolal revenues - = B
Expenditures:
Current:
General governmenl - 206
Capital outlay - --
Tolal expendilures - 206
£xcess (deficiency) of revenues {under} expendilures - {206)
Other financlng sources (uses):
Transfers In -- 52,899
Tolal other financing sourcas (uses) -- B 52999
Met changs in fund balance - 52,793
Fund balance, baginning of year 1,773 {24,594)
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,773 3 28,199
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Bay Educatlon
Cenler
_ Construction

$ 79,300

100
79,400

584
56484

22,916

94,216

94,276
147,132

(97,775)
19,357

Vehicle and
Equipment

_Replacement

622

822

199,602

189,692

{199,070)

246,193

246,193

47,123

258,348

_.305.471

GG

EXHIBIT C-11

Tolal
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds (See
Exhibit C2)

$

78,300
G2z
100

80,022

206
266,176

256,382

$

(176,360)
. 363,408
393,408
217,048

137,762

354,800




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS

Assels:
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables { nel of allowances for uncolleclibles):
Accounts
Tolal curreni assels

Noncurrent assels:
Capilal assels:
Land
Buildings
Improvements other than bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assels

Tolal Assels

LIABILITIES
Current Llabllities:
Accounis payable
Accrued expenses
Dus lo other {unds
Customer deposits
Total current Jiabilifles

Noncurreni llabitiffes:
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Tolal Hiabililles

NET ASSETS:
Invesiment in Capiial Assets, Net of Relaled Debt

Unresiricted Net Assels
Total Net Assels

EXHIBIT C-12

Enlerprise Enlerprise Enterprise Tolal
Fund Fund Fund Nenmajor
Communily Enterprise
Sanllalion Beach Aquatic Funds (See
Fund Park __ Genler _ ExhibilA-7)
$ 257,719 § 4210 $ 150 § 262,079
153,956 - ) 242 154,198
411,675 4,210 382 416,277
- - 104,300 104,300
- 1,455,651 - 1,455,651
- 1,117,162 1,944,240 3,361,402
- 175,496 13,162 188,658
- {2,514,996) {655,557) {3.170,553)
- 633,313 1,406,145 1,939,458
$_ 411675 § 537,623 % 1,406,537 $ 2355736
$ 393,741 % 2212 § 1314 8 397,267
-- 2,279 759 3,038
- - 241,831 241,831
S 17,832 698 18,530
393,741 22,323 244,602 660,666
-- 8,041 -- 8,041
- 8,041 - 8,041
393,741 30,364 244,602 668,707
- 533,313 1,406,145 1,939,458
17,934 {26,154} 244,210y {252,430)
$ 17,934 § 507,159 § 1,161,935 $§ 1,687,028
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES [N FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20114

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Total Operaling Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Contraciual services
Maintenance
Supplles
Other
Depreciation

Total Operating Expensas

Operaling Income {Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Intergovernmental rovenue
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Net income (Loss) before Operating Transfers

TRANSFERS:
Interfund ransfers in
Interfund transfers out

Change in Nel Assels
Nel Assals, beginning of year

Prior Perlod Adjustment
Met Assels, end of year

EXHIBIT C-13

Enterprise Enlerprise Enlorprise Tolal
Fund Fund Fund Nonmajor
Community Enlerprise
Sanitation Beach Aguallc Funds (See
Fund Park Center Exhibit A-8)

$ 17038 $ 426,924 § 114,642 557,605

17,039 425,924 114,642 £57,605

-- 332,863 113,870 446,733

-- 66,282 23,363 89,645

-- 87,699 9,069 96,768

-- 113,288 93,224 208,513

- 713 828 1,541

- B 61,442 66,124 127,666
- 662,288 308,478 968,766
17,039 (236,364} {191,836} {411,161)

- 95,000 88,760 183,750

- 95,000 88,760 183,750
17,030 {(141,364) (103,086) (227,417)

- 649,830 36,961 686,791
{36,000) - - {36,000)
(18,961 508,466 {66,125) 423,380
{111,962) {1,307) 1,228,060 1,114,791

148,857 - —- 148,857
$ 17,934 $_ 507,159 % 1,161,935 & 1,687,028

68




EXHIBIT C-14

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Total
Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Beach Aguatic Funds (See
Fund Park Center Exhibit A-8)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 23,747 % 428140 § 114,642 $ 566,529
Cash Receipts (Payments) for Operaling
Transactions with Other Funds -- {571,588) -- (571,588)
Cash Payments to Employees - (331,272) {113,870) {445,142)
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services {3,354) (267,279) (126,483} (397,116)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Acfivities 20,393 (741,989)  (125,711) (847,317)
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Operating Grants Received -- §5,000 88,750 183,750
Transfers From Other Funds -- 649,824 36,961 686,785
Transfers To Other Funds (36,000} - - {36,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital '

Financing Activities {(36,000) 744,824 125,711 834,535
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {15,607) 2,825 - {12,782)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 273,326 1,385 150 274,861
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 257,719 % 4210 % 150 3 262,079

Reconcillation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operaling Income {Loss} $ 17,038 § (236,364) $ (191,836) % {411,161)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (o Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation - 61,442 66,124 127,566
Change in Assels and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables (13,715) - -- {13,715)
Increase {Decrease) in Accounis Payable 17,069 704 1 17,774
Increase {Decrease) in Interfund Payables - (571,588) -- (571,588)
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits - 2,218 -- 2,216
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Expenses - 1,591 -- 1,591
Total Adjustments 3,354 {505,635) 66,125 (436,156)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 20,393 $ (741,999) $ (125,711) % (847,317)
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Cily of Rockport, Texas's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed informalion
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary information says about the Gily's overall financlal health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 70
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and wefl-being have changed over lime.
Revenue Capagily 76
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the faclors affecting the Gily's
abliily to generate its properly and sales faxes.
Debt Capacity 80
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's abilily to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information 85
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
how the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and
wilh other governments.
38

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the
reader understand how the Cily's financial informalion relates to the services the Cily provides

and the aclivities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noled, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relovant year.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

UNAUDITED
Flscal Properly Sales & Use Franchise Occupancy Other
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Taxes Tolai
2002 $ 1,890,537 § 1,227,505 560,747 § 365,720 $ 146,532 & 4,190,041
2003 1,962,595 1,273,667 497,834 388,259 182,620 4,334,880
2004 2,114,864 1,400,667 567,342 421,125 148,319 4,662,207
2005 2,190,191 1,624,226 560,227 £03,819 158,898 5,037,381
2006 2,451,332 1,718,155 657,696 472,168 170,545 5,469,894
2007 2,793,123 1,714,042 712,156 533,215 175,044 6,827,580
2008 3,455,073 1,842,730 753,400 540,624 164,319 6,758,146
2009 3,837,024 1,726,848 803,466 467,038 180,618 7,014,990
2010 3,996,528 1,737,375 731,583 477,688 217,649 7,160,823
2011 4,011,826 1,798,286 801,629 847,278 180,877 7,440,695

Percent

Change

2002-2611 112.2% 46.6% 43,0% 77.0% 24.3% 77.86%
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TABLE E-7

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Total Estimated Taxable Assoessed
Total Taxable Direcl Aclual Value as a

Fiscal Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of

Year Value Rate Value Aclual Taxable Value
2001 $ 611,641,940 $ 0.3300 % 611,641,840 106.000%
2003 694,686,410 0.2836 694,686,410 100.000%
2004 783,984,771 6.2650 783,984,771 100.000%
2005 850,188,337 0.2557 850,188,337 100.000%
2006 965,490,048 0.2549 954,164,770 99.861%
2007 1,144,148,087 0.2443 1,134,5673,954 99,163%
2008 1,287,712,848 0.2780 1,216,113,688 94.440%
2008 1,361,604,141 0.2000 1,285,461,385 94.408%
2010 1,397,961,945 0.2987 1,321,626,417 94.540%
2011 1,631,620,376 0.3100 1,367,738,150 89,300%

Source: Aransas Counly Appralsal District
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
PRINGIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

TABLE E-9

UNAUDITED
2011 2002
Percantage Percenlage
of Tolal Clty of Total Cily
Taxable Taxable Taxable ‘Faxable
Assessed Assassad Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value _ Rank Value Value Rank Value
Caks at Bentwaler, LP $ 7.663,730 1 0.6603% $ - - -
Rockport Harborfronl, LP 7,471,194 2 0.6462% - -- -
AEP Texas Central 7,177,280 3 0.5248% 2,759,910 4 0.4516%
Wal-Marl Real Estate Bus 1r 7,132,010 4 0.6214% - - -
H.E. Buli Grocory 6,236,802 5 0.4560% 4,319,562 1 0.7068%
Wal-Marl Slores Easi #440 5,480,977 B 0.4007% 2,325,344 6 0.3805%
EOG Resources, Inc. 4,849,260 7 0.3545% - - -
Herilage Hotals Rockport LP 4,642,460 8 0.3394% - - -
Royat Marina Holdlngs, LLC 3,062,646 9 0.2897% -- — -
Crowley, Christopher 3,660,790 10 0.2677% - - -
Southwestern Bell Telephone - - -- 3,629,790 2 0.5939%
Bass, Perry R Inc. - - - 2,798,937 3 0.4577%
Bracht iLumber Co.,, Ing, - -- - 2,650,810 5 0.4174%
Summit Care Texas LP -- - - 2,260,080 7 0.3698%
Rockporl Propertigs, LTD -- - - 2,227,830 8 0.3645%
Pahl, Brian and Linda - 2,019,330 9 0.3304%
Grocers Supply Co., Inc - _ - - 2,016,120 10 0.3289%
Total $ 58,277,249 4.2608% $ 26,905,613 4.4025%

Source; Aransas Gounly Appralsal District
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed and Estimated Aclual Value.

(2} Poputation data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economlc Stalistics.
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UNAUDITED
General Bonded Debt Oulslanding
Geoneral Debt Nel

Fiscal Bonded Service Bonded
Year Debt Fund Debt
2001 $ 6087420 § 240,336 5,847,093
2003 5,734,716 250,259 5,484,457
2004 5,146,647 271,860 4,873,697
2005 4,806,458 277,024 5,083,482
2008 10,163,405 259,152 9,004,253
2007 23,886,894 542,935 23,343,959
2008 23,449,672 365,215 23,084,367
2009 22,846,280 363,963 22,482,325
2010 22,061,354 293,651 22,355,005
2011 21,314,775 344,632 21,656,307

Percentage of
Aclual Taxable
Value of

Property(1)

0.84%
0.79%
0.62%
0.60%
1.04%
2.06%
1.90%
1.75%
1.69%

1.58%

$

TABLE E-12

Per
_ Caplta(2)

749
703
575
536
1,085
2,520
2,449
2,292
2,462

2,385



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
UNAUDITED

Governmental Unit

Debt Repaid With Properly Taxes
Aransas Counly Independent School District
Aransas County
Aransas County Navigation District

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt

City Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Note: Overlapping governmentis are those that coincide, at least in pari, with the geographic boundaries of the Cily.
The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated by the percent of area of each government that

is within the boundaries of the City.

Debt

Outstanding

$ 26,052,147
15,036,008

5,710,000

Estimated
Percentage

. Applicable

62.070%

56.800%

46.850%

Information obtained from entities audiled financial statements and Aransas Counly Appraisal Districl.
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TABLE E-13

Estimated
Share of
Direct and
Overlapping
_ Debt

$ 16,170,568
8,540,451
2,675,135

27,386,154

5__49.607,920
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED

Employer

Aransas Counly IS0
Wal-Mari

Care Regional Maedical Center
H.E.B,

Wood Group Produclion Ser
Aransas Gounly

City of Roekport

Slate of Toxas

Gulf Poine Plaza

Rockporl Coastal Care Centler

Total

2011

Enmployees

Rank

Percentage
of Total City
Employment

2002

TABLE E-17

Employaas

Rank

Percentage
of Tolal City
Employment

521
250
210
185
181
175
130
107

g3

76

1,927

[RORI. )t A-«frrrite o)

Source: Rockporl Fullon Chambaer of Commerce

Omitted Information Is not available,
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
INSURANCE IN FORCE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

UNAUDITED

POLICY

COVERAGE

TABLE E-21

EXPIRATION

Texas Municlpal League
Intergovarnmentat Risk Pool
#9131

Texas Municipal League
B81BSBAN2111
6183BAI4945
G18SBBOS668

Fidality Natlonai Insurance Co.
421150039772
421150263872
421150263870
421150399146
421150263871
421150676270

Texas Windsiorm Insurance Assc.
26742910

Real and Personal Properly, $21,905,936

Moblle Equipment, 3869500

Eirors & Omissions, $2,000,000 occuirence, $4,000,000
annual aggregate

Law Enfoercement Liabllity, $3,000,000 occurrence, $6,000,000
annual aggregale

Generat Liahility, $2,000,000 occurrence, $4,000,000
annual aggregate

Aulo Liability, $1,000,000 occurrence, $25,000 Medical

Aulo Physical Damage, coverage varles per vehicle

Workers Compensatlon, timil slalutory

Public Employee Dishonesty, $50,000 occurance

Forgery or Alleration, $10,000 occurance

Theft, Disappearance & Deslruction, $10,000 occurance

Computer Fraud, $10,000 occurance

Boiler & Machinery, $100,000

Flood-Cily Hall and contents, $500,000

Public Official Bond, Tax Collecter, $50,000
Public Official Bond, Cily Manger, $50,000
Public Official Bond, Finance Director, $50,000

Flood-Beach Park Mainlenance, $40,300
Floed-Pavillion North Bath House, $416,000/$5,500
Flood-Pavlllion West, Sallwater Pool, $600,000/$37,500
Flood-Pavillion East with Concesslon,$500,000/837,500
Flood-Pavillion Soulh Bath House $410,000/$25,000
Flood-Bay Educalion Center, $500,000/$487,000

Windstorm and Hall, $15,496,674

g0

Qclober 1, 2012

Augusi 12, 2012
Janurary 9, 2013
March 6, 2012

August 16, 2012
March 21, 2012
March 21, 2012
May 21, 2012

March 21, 2012
Seplember 4, 2012

August 27, 2012



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS TABLE E-22

SELECTED UTILITY FUND DATA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

UNAUDBITED

Fiscal Year
Ended Water Sewer Gallons of Waler

Seplember 30, Conneclions__ _ Conneclions Consuined
2002 7,776 3,808 822,804,200
2003 7.938 3,872 769,984,600
2004 8,161 3,986 797,799,100
2006 8,386 4129 879,664,100
2008 8,747 4,275 916,721,400
2007 8,025 4,356 842,145,700
2008 9,173 4,433 882,252,300
2009 9,410 4,526 1,073,168,400
2010 8,516 4,567 1,014,375,581
2011 9,612 4,618 1,028,847,000
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Other Supplementary information

This sectlon includes financial Information and disclosures nol required by the Governmenial Accounling Standards
Board and nol considered a part of the basle {lnancial statements. It may, however, include informallon which is

required by olher entilles,




Michael A, Arnold, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361} 729-3545

501 E. MARKET
FAX [361) 700-9692

P.O. BOX 1266
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1286

independent Auditor's Report

City Council

Cily of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the Cily Council;

We have audited the financial siatements of the governmental activilies, the business-lype activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cily of Rockport, Texas as of and for the year
ended Seplember 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Cily of Rockport, Texas's basic financial
statlements and have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2012. We conducted our audi in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America and the standards
applicable to financial audils contained in Governmen! Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States.

in planning and performing our audil, we considered Cily of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedtures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on ihe
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Gily of
Rockport, Texas's internal conirol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Clly of Rockport, Texas's Internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal conlrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to pravent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a limely basis, A malerial weakness is a deflciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internatl conlrol such that there Is a reasonable possibllity that a malerial misstatement of the entily's financial

statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporling was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this seclion and was not designed to identify all deficlencies in internal control aver financial
reporiing that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses, We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporling thal we consider lo be malerial weaknesses, as

defined above.

g2



As part of oblaining reasonable assurance aboul whether Gity of Rockport, Texas's financlal stalements are
froe of material misstatement, we performed tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of faws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an oplnion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion, The resulls of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other mallers that are required

to be reported under Government Auditing Standards,

This reporl Is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, the Cily
Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone olher than these specified parties,

Respectfuliy submitted,

I 7 LA T
Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

March 16, 2012
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF GRANT REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
GRANTOR: TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF RURAL AFFAIRS
CONTRACT NUMBER: R728530

CONTRACT PERIOD: September 15, 2009-Seplembsr 14, 2011

EXHIBIT F1

Slate Maich
Prlor Current Prior Current
Budget Years Year Years Year Tolal

Revenues: o
Federal $300,000 §22,000 $267,942 s - $ - $289,942
Local 60,000 - - - 60,000 £0,000

Tolal revenues 366,000 22,060 267,942 - 60,000 349,942
Expenditures:
Federal:
Sewer Facilllies 165,280 195,280 - - 195,280
Rehab. Privale Prop 46,794 - 40,486 - - 40,486
Engineering 32,926 8,500 23,426 - - 32,926
Adminisiration 9,683 4,000 3,621 - - 7821
Aclivily Dalivery 15,317 8,500 5,129 13,629
Local:
Sawer Facilllles 48,402 - - - 48,402 418,402
Rehab. Private Prop 11,508 - - - 11,508 11,598

Tolal expenditures 360,000 22,000 267,842 - 60,000 349,942
Excess of reventss
over expendiltires $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - __ 3 -
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